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Our Vision
We deliver on the changing energy 
needs of Western Australians, powered 
by community trust and the passion  
of our people.

Our Values
Safety First

We respect and take care of each other, 
our community and the environment. 
We choose safety – if it’s not safe we 
don’t do it.

Customer Focus

We accept responsibility, do what  
we say and think about how our work 
affects others. Our solutions are  
relevant and make financial sense  
for our community.

Be Bold

We embrace change and have a go.  
We challenge the status quo to deliver 
better outcomes. We learn and adapt 
quickly – we’re nimble.

Teamwork

We invite the diverse opinions of others 
and work together. We share ideas that 
advance our knowledge to develop  
energy solutions for our community.

On the cover: Merredin, Western Australia. 
Pictured left: A birds eye view of our network 
in Three Springs, Western Australia.

Owned by the people of WA
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Corporate Social  
Responsibility Statement
Corporate social responsibility at Western Power is centred on the 
guiding principle that we care about the social, environmental  
and economic issues that impact our people, our customers and  
our community.

Western Power is committed to pursuing sustainable outcomes across the business  
through our corporate policies. We’ve aligned our sustainability efforts with the United  
Nations Sustainable Development Goals framework, underpinned by overarching  
objectives for our business that include:

• establishing a world-class health, safety and environmental management system that   
 benefits our employees, customers and the broader community

• embracing a diverse and inclusive culture across our business so people feel supported  
 to be themselves at work

• embracing the use of new technologies and innovation and building a flexible  
 modular grid which not only improves the services to customers but also supports  
 the decarbonisation of our communities

• ensuring our business operations and our suppliers positively contribute to the  
 communities and value chains in which they operate

• fostering stronger partnerships with community organisations.

Our employees at our microgrid  
in Kalbarri, Western Australia.
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About Western Power
Western Power is a corporation owned by the State Government of 
Western Australia, responsible for delivering an essential service to the 
community.

We build, maintain and operate the  
transmission and distribution electricity  
networks across more than 255,000km2  
from Kalbarri in the north, to Albany and 
Bremer Bay in the south, and out to  
Kalgoorlie in the east. Our vision is to deliver 
on the changing energy needs of Western 
Australians, powered by community trust 
and the passion of our people.

The 2.3 million customers covered by our 
network area want Western Power to safely 
deliver reliable, affordable and increasingly  
renewable electricity and support future 
economic opportunities and jobs.

Decarbonisation will drive much of our  
work during the next decade, moving away 
from fossil fuels and supporting customer 
uptake of lower emission technology such  
as electric vehicles (EVs), batteries and  
rooftop solar.

Our Corporate Strategy sets out our plan 
and the steps that we are taking to support 
decarbonisation goals including a decade 
of transformational investment in existing 
assets and new technology. 

We’re transforming our distribution  
network into a modular grid comprising 
three zones including a tightly meshed  
urban network with increasing underground 
assets, a hybrid network of mostly overhead 
assets complemented by new technologies 
like stand-alone power systems (SPS) and  
an autonomous network of remote power 
systems with more SPS units and microgrids.

Our plan is to improve safety 
and reliability, particularly  
across the remote regional  
parts of our network, embed  
new and improved technologies 
and enable customers to  
decarbonise their energy usage. 

Western Power is governed by an  
independent Board of non-executive  
directors. The Minister for Energy represents 
our State Government owner.

Our performance is overseen by the  
Economic Regulation Authority, ensuring  
a fair, competitive and efficient environment 
for consumers and businesses. 

We’re regulated through an Access  
Arrangement made under the Electricity 
Networks Access Code 2004 (WA), which  
sets service performance targets and how 
much we can charge to allow access to  
our network.

Our safety performance is regulated by  
the Building and Energy Division of the  
Department of Mines, Industry Regulation 
and Safety.

In a rapidly changing landscape, our customers’  
energy needs are advancing and we intend to  
stay at the forefront of the energy revolution. 
We’re proud of our history and our people, and  
even prouder to be driving the development  
of WA’s energy future.

Stand-alone power system in Bodallin.
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Our Corporate Strategy  
enables us to power the  
lives of the community

Our 10-year Corporate Strategy 2021-31 centres on ‘powering the lives  
of our community’. It recognises that our community of 2.3 million  
Western Australians want Western Power to safely provide reliable,  
increasingly renewable electricity while keeping costs low and supporting 
jobs and growth. Our strategy sets out our plan to meet these needs  
by transitioning to a modular grid and supporting the decarbonisation  
of our local economy.   

Our workforce of 3,080  
Western Australians connects 
more than 2 million customers 
across the state. 
Our grid covers more than 
255,000km2 with 103,000km 
of wires, 154 substations, and 
276,000 streetlights.
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Our largest customer base is in urban  
population areas and for these customers 
we’ll focus where possible on undergrounding 
assets and facilitating ever-increasing 
amounts of renewable and distributed  
energy resources (DER) – everything  
from rooftop solar panels to large-scale 
wind farms.

For regional customers, this will mean  
new ways of delivering power, like SPS and 
microgrids where appropriate. Our depot 
network will remain, supporting regional 
communities.

For customers in between those two areas, 
we’ll have a hybrid network of largely  
overhead assets, with new technology  
options like SPS utilised where they best  
deliver for the community.

We’ll be ready for 70 per cent of the  
community’s electricity to be supplied  
by renewable sources by 2040 and will  
continue to move with community  
expectations.

We will enable an increasingly renewable 
future for the community by delivering  
required transmission investments, improving 
DER integration and coordination (our  
Distribution System Operator [DSO] functions) 
with advanced meter infrastructure (AMI), 
modernised connection standards for DER, 
and greater amounts of network-connected 
storage to help balance periods of low  
demand and intermittent supply.

This approach ensures that we’re planning  
prudently for an increase in local use of  
EVs, without overinvesting in the technology 
before it is more broadly accepted in WA. 
Underground cables have greater capacity 
to support EVs when they arrive, and AMI can 
help us with data to manage this new load.

The transformative decade of investment  
will ensure the network supports the  
most flexible connection and operation  
of DER possible, for the benefit of all  
Western Australians.

Western Power Corporate Strategy | 2021-2031

Built upon our values:

Driven by  
our people

Safety First Customer Focus Be Bold Teamwork

Our plan to deliver for the community focuses on:

Optimising our 
transition to the 
modular grid

Our community expects us to SAFELY:

Provide reliable 
supply

Powering the lives of our community by delivering the modular grid

Enabled by  
technology

Keep costs  
low

Connect more 
renewables

Support jobs 
and growth

Integrating  
Distributed Energy 
Resources (DER)  
into the grid

Delivering 
outcomes for 
customers

Driving financial 
sustainability

Decarbonising 
our community
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Chair’s message
This is my final annual report as Chairman of Western Power.  
It’s been a privilege to be part of an organisation which plays  
a critical role in supporting the wonderful first-world lifestyle  
we enjoy in the southwest of Western Australia. 

Since my appointment in May 2015,  
each year has been full of opportunities, 
challenges, changes, and some  
disappointments. This year is no different.

Extreme and unpredictable weather  
events are now common. Last year Tropical 
Cyclone Seroja damaged a huge swathe  
of our network from Geraldton to Kalgoorlie.  
This year, over the Christmas period, we had 
an extreme heat wave over four days and 
nights with temperatures over 40 degrees. 
More than 100,000 homes and businesses 
suffered power outages, some repeatedly. 
While recognising this was not acceptable,  
I commend our staff for their response.  

I thank Australian Energy Market  
Commissioner Michelle Shepherd for  
leading an independent review of the event 
and providing us with constructive  
recommendations. Plans and actions  
are underway to respond to her  
recommendations. I draw attention to  
the need for us to improve the effectiveness 
of our customer communications. 

We must learn how to be genuinely  
customer responsive and use available 
technology, such as text messages, to send 
customers timely and targeted messages  
as problems arise and are resolved.

COVID-19 has continued to impact our 
supply chains and for example has caused 
delays to deliveries of smart meters. Mining 
and government infrastructure investment 
and labour shortages have driven up costs 
of construction and building.

Consequently, we’ve slowed down our depot 
modernisation program where tendered 
costs have far exceeded our approved  
cost estimates.

Nevertheless, an ambitious program of  
capital works has been largely delivered 
and our operational performance for the 
most part has been good. There are several 
operational hot spots where our service is 
sub-standard. These are being addressed.

Despite the supply chain issues, we have 
installed close to half a million advanced 
meters and we’re building momentum in  
the deployment of SPS with 100 installed.  
Our five-year program will improve reliability 
for remote and rural customers and reduce 
fire risk as we remove redundant overhead 
lines. Microgrids have been installed at 
‘fringe of the network’ locations in Kalbarri 
and Perenjori.

The exponential increase in rooftop solar PV, 
now the single largest source of generation 
in the South West Interconnected System 
(SWIS), benefits the community but  
challenges network stability. Extensive  
collaboration between Government,  
Australian Energy Market Operator (AEMO), 
Synergy and Western Power has resulted  
in a requirement for the Emergency Solar 
Management initiative, which will assist as  
a last resort in managing peaks and troughs 
of energy demand.

In-line with the State Government’s Climate 
Change Policy, Western Power is addressing  
its carbon footprint, which is primarily fuel 
use in our fleet of vehicles, network line  
losses and streetlights. However, we do  
have a critical role to play in supporting  
the transition of carbon intensive industries 
towards their carbon reduction targets,  
supporting Synergy as they replace their 
coal generators with renewable energy, and 
the community to adopt electric vehicles. 

This will require investment in our  
transmission system to allow industry  
to connect to new renewable power  
generation. We’re working with Government 
and customers to determine how much  
investment is likely to be needed and  
when and how it will be financed.

Attraction and retention of employees  
has been a growing concern for Western 
Power, as is it for many organisations. This 
year we’ve lost staff to other companies,  
primarily due to more competitive  
remuneration being offered, and as part  
of the post-Covid ‘great resignation’  
which is happening globally. 

We‘re responding to this through targeted 
recruitment and developing options to  
improve our value proposition for our staff. 

Our CEO, Ed Kalajzic, left in March 2022 for  
a role in the burgeoning renewables sector. 
I thank him for his enthusiastic and strong 
leadership during his short tenure. 

Sam Barbaro was appointed Acting CEO  
in March 2022 and has led the business with  
conviction and passion. I thank him for  
stepping into the role. 

I am pleased he has now been selected  
and appointed as CEO. I congratulate him. 
He is a long-serving and well-regarded 
Western Power Executive. I have enjoyed 
working with him during my time as Chair 
and have full confidence in his commitment 
to Western Power and his ability to lead the 
organisation through the opportunities and 
challenges that lie ahead.

I am grateful to Minister for Energy Bill  
Johnston for his support and for  
providing clarity on Western Power’s role  
in implementing the all-encompassing  
Energy Transformation Strategy, which he  
set in motion. This has enabled us to focus 
our efforts on what we need to deliver as  
well as to work effectively with other  
stakeholders. 
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During my tenure I’ve also had the pleasure 
of working with former Energy Ministers Ben 
Wyatt and Mike Nahan and acknowledge 
and thank them and Minister Johnston for 
their support and encouragement.

I’ve witnessed the outstanding work  
by our employees and I thank them for  
their dedication and professionalism.  
Their ongoing commitment to our  
community has made me proud to be  
part of Western Power.

I extend sincere thanks to my fellow board 
directors, current and past, for all their  
support, guidance, and collaboration.  
I particularly thank my Deputy Chair,  
Greg Martin. We were appointed on the 
same day and he has provided sound 
advice which I have valued. 

My fellow Board member Denise  
Goldsworthy AO will be taking over the  
position of Chair. She has been a  
Director since 2018 and is an enthusiastic 
and well-informed member of the Board.  
I congratulate her and wish her every  
success in the role. 

Western Power has a proud past and an  
exciting future which I will observe from  
the sidelines with keen interest.

Colin Beckett
Chairman

“Western Power has a proud past and  
an exciting future which I will observe from 
the sidelines with keen interest.”

A PowerBank installation in Ellenbrook.

Our operational crews  
working in South Perth.
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CEO’s message
Meeting the changing energy needs of our community comes with  
many challenges and complexities, and the past year has again 
demonstrated that our evolving world-class network, coupled with  
our extraordinary workforce, is meeting and overcoming them. 

While I have only recently been appointed 
CEO, I have spent many years working at 
Western Power alongside professional and 
incredibly talented people whose dedication 
to providing an essential service now and  
in the future is commendable. 

It is a privilege to lead such an incredible 
group of people who play an important  
role in transforming the network to support  
a renewable energy future as we move  
forward towards decarbonisation. 

Safety 

Throughout all aspects of the business,  
the one thing that is uncompromising is  
our ongoing commitment to safety.

As at the end of June 2022, our All Injury  
Frequency rate was 21.6. We will never be 
satisfied with our safety performance and 
remain focussed on continual improvement.  
Our new Safety Maturity Strategy is reshaping 
our approach to embed mental wellness  
alongside physical wellbeing and elevating 
our individual responsibilities as safety  
leaders supported by data-driven  
systems and procedures. 

I am extremely proud of the way in which  
all staff supported each other through  
the challenges posed by COVID-19, both  
at work and in our personal lives. It is this  
collegial approach to our work that supports 
the passion to create and maintain a  
safe workplace.

Better serving the community 

The past year was a year of significant  
learnings with greater insight provided into 
what our community expects and needs 
from us. The power outages experienced 
during the heatwave over the Christmas  
period caused significant concern for many 
of our customers, and we worked closely 
with the independent review initiated by  
Energy Minister Bill Johnston to determine 
how we can improve our service delivery  
to the community.

We thank Australian Energy Market  
Commissioner Michelle Shepherd for her  
diligent work in the independent review, 
which provided six key recommendations 
that we’re currently addressing. Key areas 
we are focusing on include improving the 
way we communicate with customers; and 
the way we work to restore power supply 
during periods of high fire danger ratings. 

Like many businesses around the world,  
our business’ supply chain has not been  
immune to the disruptive effects of 
COVID-19. 

  

Items such as transformers, switchgear  
and metering units have all been affected  
and this caused delays to many of our 
projects, with some experiencing up to six 
months of delays. We understand delays  
impact our customers and we’re continuing 
to develop alternative solutions to mitigate  
this challenge.

The path to decarbonisation: stand-alone 
power systems, microgrids, renewables  
and managing system loads. 

Western Power is committed to the  
comprehensive work that will be required  
to enable a decarbonised future for Western 
Australians. This year we continued to  
evolve the network to improve its resilience 
to climate change weather impacts and 
increase its capability to support greater 
renewable energy. 

We’re increasingly using microgrids as  
a solution for regional communities.  
In February 2022, Energy Minister Bill Johnston  
officially opened our $15 million renewable 
microgrid in Kalbarri – the largest in Australia. 

Using entirely wind and solar energy, this  
microgrid provides greater power reliability 
for Kalbarri which has been vulnerable  
to power outages in the past. 

This year we were proud to announce  
WA’s first pumped-hydro supported  
microgrid in Walpole. A collaborative project 
with Power Research and Development, the 
microgrid will significantly improve power 
reliability for the town – mitigating up to  
80 per cent of outages.

Along with microgrids, we significantly  
expanded our SPS program and now lead 
the nation in the roll out of this innovative 
green technology.

With greater growth in renewable energy, 
particularly rooftop solar, we are increasingly 
experiencing low electricity demand levels 
on our network that can impact system  
security. We’ve been working collaboratively 
with the AEMO, Synergy and the WA State 
Government to trial and test solutions to  
ensure system security during periods of 
peak and low electricity demand.

For a system originally designed for  
one-way energy flow, we’ve been making  
incredible progress in exploring how  
we manage new load demands while  
supporting the greater connection of  
renewables. Two new measures underway 
include the virtual power plant trial, Project 
Symphony and a new measure of last  
resort, Emergency Solar Management.

In May 2022, our work with the ambitious  
Waste to Energy project in East Rockingham  
progressed after we successfully installed  
an electrical switchyard, bringing the  
facility a step closer to being operational.

Once complete, it will deliver a cost-effective 
waste treatment solution and become  
a renewable energy source by thermally 
treating waste and converting recovered  
energy into steam to produce electricity.
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Harnessing technology 

Information technologies play a significant 
role in how we operate and transform the 
network and we launched our new Digital 
Capability Strategy earlier this year to  
continue to improve how we harness digital 
technology. Given that most new or innovative 
technology deployed will include some form 
of digital interface, we need to be strategic  
in our approach to using technology  
that strengthens our innovation goals  
and this strategy will inform and support 
many areas of innovation as well as our  
day-to-day operations.

Our people 

Supporting our employees is a fundamental 
commitment, including providing workplaces 
that are safe, operationally efficient and 
have a great environment and facilities.  
Significant work progressed on our Depot 
Modernisation Program, including the  
construction of new Albany and South  
Metro depots. 

Located at the Forrestdale Industrial Park, 
South Metro Depot will be our largest,  
combining several other metro-based  
depots. Overall 800 employees from field 
and office-based roles will be located in  
the state-of-the-art facility. Construction  
is expected to be finished in late 2022,  
and staff relocated through 2023.

This year we reached a new enterprise 
agreement (EA) for our staff covered by the 
Communications, Electrical, Plumbing Union 
(CEPU), with more than 90 per cent of eligible 
employees who voted yes. The new EA is fair, 
equitable and aligns with community  
expectations. Next year we will commence 
discussions for a new EA for staff covered  
by the Australian Services Union.

We launched our first Reconciliation  
Action Plan (RAP), Reflect in 2017, to further 
our reconciliation goals with Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander peoples. Building on 
the achievements of Reflect, in June 2022 
we released our second RAP, Innovate. The 
Innovate RAP provides tangible actions to 
strengthen our relationship with Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander peoples. We’ve set 
ambitious targets to help us take a leading 
role in building meaningful and lasting 
change in our community.  

This year we continued to play an important 
role in providing Western Australians with 
vocational education and training  
opportunities. We recruited 31 new  
apprentices, which was the largest intake 
since 2014, including five from Aboriginal  
and Torres Strait Islander backgrounds.

A team effort  

I would like to acknowledge outgoing  
Chair Colin Beckett after seven years leading 
our Board and the direction of the business.  
Colin’s leadership, business acumen  
and commitment to the community  
provided strong direction during a  
considerable period of change in the  
energy industry. On behalf of everyone  
at Western Power, I thank Colin for the  
leadership, guidance and ongoing support 
for our people. We wish him well. 

I would also like to acknowledge our former 
CEO, Ed Kalajzic, who departed Western  
Power in March 2022. Ed was a dedicated 
leader who helped deliver our new Corporate  
Strategy which plots our path into a  
decarbonised future.

Ed’s calm and consistent approach helped  
us navigate through the challenges brought 
on by COVID-19 and natural disasters.  
I thank Ed for his contribution to Western 
Power and the community we serve.  

Finally, and most importantly, I would like  
to take this opportunity to recognise our  
employees for their ongoing efforts and  
unwavering commitment to our customers.  
I am proud of the way staff go about their 
business and commend them for their  
resilience and dedication to delivering  
on our strategy by ‘powering the lives of  
our community’. 

Sam Barbaro
CEO

“I am proud of the way staff go about their  
business and commend them for their resilience  
and dedication to delivering on our strategy  
by ‘powering the lives’ of our community.”

‘Boordakan – Future path or direction’ is a custom artwork commissioned as part of our Reconciliation Action Plan. 
Artist: Buffie Corunna.
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Operating  
review
Significant investment and renewal 
was carried out on the network during 
the 2021-22 financial year. 

In partnership with the State  
Government and local government  
authorities, we completed six  
underground power projects this year, 
with a total value of $48 million.

More than 4,800 properties benefited 
through improved visual amenity,  
increased safety and greater resilience 
against outages. A further seven  
underground power projects are  
currently being delivered.

By June 2027 we aim to convert  
a further 875km of overhead network  
to underground as it becomes due  
for replacement.

Growth capital expenditure (both  
transmission and distribution) is  
typically one of the largest areas of  
investment for an energy network  
business. We’re committed to  
connecting customers and investing 
in infrastructure to support the State’s 
economy. We allocated $251.5 million  
for customer-driven works, network  
capacity expansion and major  
projects during the past year.

The coastal town of Kalbarri can now be powered by  
an entirely renewable energy solution utilising solar  
and wind generation coupled with battery storage.
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Our safety program includes traditional  
investments in pole management, conductor 
management, connection management  
and bushfire management, as well as  
investment in alternative technological  
solutions in place of traditional network  
replacement, where our network reaches 
end of life. This includes replacing overhead 
network assets with underground power or, 
removing network assets altogether where 
electricity can be supplied cost effectively 
via a stand-alone solution, with safety and 
improved electricity supply reliability benefits.

Key investments included the AMI program, 
which will provide improved visibility of  
power flows on the network with improved 
safety outcomes. 

Where a home has an advanced meter 
installed we now receive an alert if there are 
unusual patterns in electricity flows, which 
can indicate a possible fault on the service 
connection to a customer’s property. 

We continued embedding the use of SPS  
and finalised a procurement process for  
delivery of additional systems in 2023.

Additionally, we continued to invest in our 
cyber security capability and upgrade our 
information and communications technology 
infrastructure to meet the modern operating 
environment. 

More than 97 per cent of our goods,  
services and materials were procured from 
Australian businesses, of which 70 per cent 
are operating in WA. Developing a diverse  
supplier base is a priority and we have  
now awarded 28 contracts to Aboriginal 
businesses since the implementation of  
the State’s Aboriginal Procurement Policy. 

Some of our biggest operational challenges 
during the year were managing the ongoing 
impacts of Tropical Cyclone Seroja and  
the introduction of mandatory COVID-19 
vaccinations for our 3000-plus workforce.

Our approach in meeting these  
challenges demonstrates agility, resilience 
and innovation. 

We invested $236.2 million  
of capital expenditure in safety 
programs to maintain the  
safety of the network.

1 Rolling 12-month average (R12).
2 Actual as of May 2022: Engagement Survey is an annual process.
3 Updated quarterly with a two-month data lag: Actual as at March 2022. 

Key Performance Measures – Full year 2021-22

Government goal Measure Actual Target Status

Sustainable
Proportion of all  
Electricity Needs Met  
by Renewables

34% ≥30%

Reliable Network Availability1 99.91% ≥99.93%

People Employee  
Engagement2 75% ≥80%

Affordable
Net Cost imposed  
on the community  
per connection

$961 ≤$1,000

Safe
Public safety incidents1,3 29 ≤61

All Injury Frequency 
Rate1 21.6 ≤15

Capex Investment:

  Renewing the network $363.5m

  Connecting new customers $110.8m

  Meeting growth in demand $91.4m

  Information technology $74.6m

  Reliability and other targeted investments $52.2m

  New technologies $152.9m

NB. The above excludes gifted assets.

$363.5m

$110.8m

$91.4m $74.6m

$52.2m

$152.9m

SPS $26.8m

Advanced  
Meters $44.4m

Depot  
Modernisation 

$81.7m
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Transforming our network
Western Power is a key player in the delivery of the State’s Energy  
Transformation Strategy and has made significant inroads into 
future-proofing the network and delivering innovative solutions for  
the community including community batteries, microgrids and SPS.

We’re working to continually transform our network through  
innovation and community consultation, while reducing our reliance  
on fossil fuels. Decarbonisation will influence our work over the next  
decade and beyond. 

The innovative SPS solution installed at a farming property in Tambellup.
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Stand-alone Power Systems (SPS)

In June 2022, our 100th SPS unit came online,  
cementing WA’s place as a leader in the  
rollout of this energy technology. No other 
state in Australia has as many SPS currently 
operational. The equivalent of a further  
4,000 SPS will be brought online over the  
next 10 years.

SPS units are powered by solar panels,  
battery storage and have a back-up  
diesel generator. 

While also delivering cleaner, greener  
energy, SPS provides stability to customers 
by reducing power outages by up to  
90 per cent. 

Western Power will continue to utilise this 
technology to improve customer outcomes.

Kalbarri Microgrid

In February 2022, Energy Minister Bill  
Johnston launched the Kalbarri microgrid  
– a small-scale power grid connected to  
the main electricity network. At a cost of 
$15 million, the Kalbarri microgrid (pictured 
above) is the largest in the country and is 
designed to operate with power generated 
by wind and solar renewable energy. 

Kalbarri is situated at the end of a 140km 
long rural feeder powerline from Geraldton. 
The line is subject to interruption by  
environmental factors which at times  
requires extensive line patrols in order  
to safely reconnect customers.

This innovative solution will reduce the  
number of outages by up to 80 per cent  
supplying 5 megawatts (MW) at peak  
capacity with the capacity to store at  
least 3.5MW hours of energy.

Kalbarri’s busy tourism industry doubles  
the town’s power demands during peak 
periods. The microgrid solution will provide 
more stability during peak holiday seasons, 
helping the town’s economy and boosting 
customer satisfaction.

Since it was commissioned in late  
December 2021, the Kalbarri microgrid  
has been operating well. In the six months 
to 1 July 2022, the microgrid, supported by 
backup generator, has prevented more  
than 100 hours of outages. For example, 
during the busy Australia Day week, the  
town was powered independently for  
a total of 24 hours.
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Advanced Metering Infrastructure

The objectives of the State Government’s 
Energy Transformation Strategy are  
consistent with our business objectives,  
to ensure delivery of safe, secure, reliable, 
sustainable and affordable electricity to 
Western Australians for years to come. 
Aligned with this strategy, we’re using  
Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI)  
to allow swifter alignment between network 
customer experiences and the Energy  
Transformation Strategy.

AMI provides interval data that vastly  
improves customers’ ability to view and  
control their consumption. This data can  
enable development of tariffs that are  
more appropriate to customer behaviour.

With the increasing proliferation of solar  
and other renewables, AMI provides insights 
that support greater network visibility and 
help us better plan for the future, including 
connecting more renewables.

AMI delivers faster, safer and more reliable 
remote metering support. It will also reduce 
the requirement for manually-read metering 
services, a notable issue during COVID-19.

We began deploying advanced meters  
in 2019 and currently have half a million  
AMI meters installed across the network.  
It was originally intended for all customers  
to have an AMI meter by 2030, however due 
to the benefits they provide for customers 
and the network, we have accelerated  
an earlier deployment with intention for  
all households to have AMI by mid-2027.

Walpole Pumped Hydro

Providing reliable power to some regional 
WA towns can be challenging and costly. 
Walpole (pictured above) has historically  
experienced long delays after power  
outages, due to the town being located  
at the end of a 125km long feeder line.  
Outages not only affect the residents of  
Walpole, but also the many tourists that  
visit the coastal town.

Walpole’s pumped-hydro solution, a first  
in WA, will significantly improve energy  
reliability by reducing outages by up to  
80 per cent.

The hydroelectric microgrid will cleverly  
store energy by pumping water uphill and 
then allowing it to flow back downhill to  
create energy to provide power to the  
residents and businesses when there is an 
outage on the network. The project was  
given the green light in April 2022 and is  
expected to be fully operational in the  
second half of 2023. 
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Disconnected Microgrids

This year we began exploring how we  
could use disconnected microgrids to  
improve services for regional customers. 

A disconnected microgrid is a small,  
isolated network that operates independently 
from the rest of the main grid. 

In October 2021, WA businesses were  
offered the opportunity to partner with us  
in developing a disconnected microgrid  
pilot in the Mid-West, Wheatbelt or Great  
Southern regions. Our goal is to develop  
a renewables-based, disconnected  
microgrid which will contribute to the  
State’s goal of reaching net-zero carbon 
emissions by 2050. 

Distributed Energy Resources 

In June 2022, Energy Minister Bill Johnston  
released the Distributed Energy Resources 
(DER) Roadmap’s two-year progress  
report. Rooftop solar systems, batteries,  
and EVs are all components of DER and 
Western Australians are embracing these 
new technologies at extraordinary rates. 

In WA, roughly 30 per cent of homes and 
businesses have rooftop solar connected  
to the network and this is expected to rise  
to one in every two homes by 2030. 

This increasing connection demand will  
continue to shape the way in which the  
network is operated.

As more and more households and  
businesses switch to rooftop solar, we will 
implement innovative solutions to address 
associated network risks.

Emergency Solar Management

As part of the transformation of the  
network to support greater connection  
of renewables and DER growth, the State  
Government has introduced Emergency  
Solar Management (ESM), a last resort  
measure to manage the risks of low  
demand and its impact on secure  
electricity supply in the SWIS. 

From 14 February 2022, all new and  
upgraded solar inverters installed with  
a capacity of 5kVA or less need to be  
capable of being remotely switched off.  
This will only be used as a measure of  
last resort to maintain system security  
and avoid power outages.

Larger generators such as power stations  
will be turned down first, with residential  
solar systems the last to be impacted. 

This new measure will not interrupt power  
supply as the network will continue to supply 
power to customers. ESM is expected be  
used infrequently for only a few hours.

New Basic Embedded Generator  
Connection technical requirements were  
released in December 2021 to facilitate this  
initiative. The guidelines include export limits 
for systems with a larger than 5kVA inverter  
capacity meaning households can now  
install larger systems for self-generation  
with a streamlined connection process.  

Western Power, Synergy, Energy Policy WA 
(EPWA) and AEMO continue to work closely 
with industry to implement ESM capability.  
It is part of the transformation required to  
enable greater volumes of renewables  
to be connected to the network without  
impacting system security. 

As at 21 June 2022, more than 13,000 solar  
applications related to ESM were processed 
and the equivalent of 37MVA of solar  
generation capacity installed.

There has been a rapid rise in distributed  
energy resources including solar.
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Project Symphony

In December 2021, Western Power, Synergy 
and AEMO announced a joint pilot with the 
aim to help us better understand options  
for maximising the benefits of household 
solar and battery assets. 

Running until July 2023, the pilot involves  
approximately 500 households and  
businesses in Perth’s Southern River area, 
and their 900 energy assets, working  
together to aggregate the excess electricity 
generated by their assets and then  
dispatching it into what will become new 
energy markets and services, much like  
a traditional power plant. The aggregated 
assets create a virtual power plant. 

Over a five-day period, 20 integration tests 
were conducted with 19 proving successful – 
a significant result.

The pilot will provide valuable insights  
into how WA can address system challenges 
associated with high rooftop solar  
uptake and unlock greater economic and  
environmental benefits for the community.

The project is expected to cost $35.5  
million and is funded through the Australian  
Renewable Energy Agency (ARENA), the  
State Government and AEMO.

Rooftop solar in Harrisdale.
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Shepherd Report

In January 2022, Energy Minister Bill Johnston  
initiated an independent review to  
determine the causes and impacts of the 
power outages experienced over the  
Christmas holiday period that affected 
107,000 customers across the SWIS. A broad 
range of groups were consulted during  
this review including community  
representatives, the Department of Fire  
and Emergency Services, the Economic  
Regulation Authority, local governments,  
and the Bureau of Meteorology. The review 
was led by Australian Energy Market  
Commissioner Michelle Shepherd. 

The review found that the outages were 
caused by environmental interference during 
high fire risk conditions, as well as electricity 
demand exceeding capacity in some parts 
of the network. The demand was unusually 
high, driven by the extreme heat and 
COVID-19 impacts on typical holiday  
travel and activities.  

The review made six key recommendations 
to reduce the likelihood and impact of future 
outages across the network. 

Recommendations for Western Power  
resulting from the review included: 

1. improve approach to distribution network  
 forecasting 

2. review planning criteria to ensure its fit  
 for the future 

3. continue to improve approach to  
 reducing the risk of outages occurring,  
 and the length of any outages 

4. review of our fire risk response  
 considering the community impacts of  
 prolonged outages, particularly during  
 heatwaves 

5. engage with the community to  
 improve customer and stakeholder  
 communications in-line with customer  
 expectations, especially during  
 extreme events 

6. increase transparency regarding  
 reliability in communities

A program team was set up to address  
all six recommendations, with some actions  
identified in the resulting Implementation 
Plan due to be delivered by October 2022.

Undergrounding the network

WA’s electrical network was originally  
constructed overhead, but over time new 
technology has allowed us to move the 
network in high density areas underground. 
Beginning in 1991 the State Government  
determined that the network for all new  
urban subdivisions be placed underground. 

Following major storms in 1996, the  
appetite for moving existing overhead  
networks underground increased and the 
State Underground Power Program (SUPP) 
was established. 

Today there are three programs in place 
to move power underground: 

1. Network Renewal Undergrounding  
 Program Pilot – driven by Western Power  
 and targeting areas with a high density  
 of aging overhead assets.

2. SUPP – working in conjunction with the  
 State Government, Local Government  
 Authorities and property owners.

3. Retrospective Undergrounding Projects   
 – generally funded directly by local  
 governments or land developers. 

Benefits from underground power include 
improved reliability, increased safety,  
and greater aesthetics and treescape  
opportunities.

In-line with our 10-year Corporate Strategy, 
we will continue to enhance our network  
by deploying more underground assets. 

We look forward to continuing to work with 
the State Government to ensure the benefits 
of underground power reach as many  
customers as possible.

Above: An integral part of the energy network,  
green domes protect equipment that provides  
electricity to homes across Western Australia.

Our stories
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Governance

Our Board is our governing body and  
is responsible to the Minister for Energy  
for our overall business and strategic  
performance. Its roles and responsibilities 
within the Electricity Corporations Act  
2005 include strategy: stakeholder  
relationships; compliance and risk  
management; and operational and  
capital management. Sustainability  
performance is reported to the Safety, 
Health, Environment and Sustainability  
sub-committee, which oversees  
governance of climate-related risks  
and opportunities.

To enable us to prioritise efforts around  
all social, environmental and economic  
sustainability, we adopted the relevant  
United Nations Sustainable Development 
Goals (see page 35), including measures  
to support climate action. 

These goals provide an umbrella framework 
that guides us in serving the community  
in a sustainable manner. These focus areas 
are endorsed through our new Sustainability 
Policy and our Sustainability Standard sets 
out how we will measure our progress against 
them. The measures will be reported in 2023.

Climate projections show that WA’s climate will continue to change over 
the coming decades; however, projections differ depending on a range 
of greenhouse gas scenarios, called Representative Concentration  
Pathways (RCPs). All RCPs point to a continued rise in temperatures, 
which increases the risk of unpredictable and extreme weather events. 

Strategy

Efforts to decarbonise the environment will 
have a significant impact on our business  
in the coming years.

As a vital part of the State’s infrastructure,  
we are a critical enabler of electrification 
and our network will help industry and  
government realise net decarbonisation 
benefits for the State and support the  
WA Government’s aspiration of reducing 
Government emissions by 80 percent by 
2030 and achieving net-zero emissions  
by 2050. 

Decarbonisation plans for our customers 
and our community will significantly  
increase the overall demand for renewable 
electricity. We’re taking action to ensure 
consumers and industry can integrate their 
electrification investments into the network 
and electricity market.

The electricity network will support  
decarbonisation by enabling access to  
renewable electricity so that customers  
can displace their reliance on fossil fuels. 
We’re integrating new technologies that  
will enable Western Power to continue  
providing an essential service for  
customers into the future.

This year Western Power submitted its  
proposal for the fifth access arrangement 
period (AA5). The proposal supports our  
Corporate Strategy to efficiently and  
effectively transition our network to  
maintain reliability and safety, be more  
resilient to extreme climate change events.

Our climate risks and opportunities  
are reviewed annually with appropriate  
climate-related subject matter expertise. 
Key risks and opportunities include:

Risks Opportunities

Increasing frequency and severity of  
weather events and/or bushfires, damaging 
assets and interrupting supply.

Modular grid transition to improve the  
grid’s climate resilience.

Uncoordinated uptake of distributed  
renewable energy resources putting power 
system security and network reliability  
at risk.

Enhancement of our distribution system  
operator capability to orchestrate the  
electricity system in concert with others.

Changing stakeholder expectations on  
climate actions.

Increasingly decarbonised grid being  
leveraged to decarbonise other economic 
sectors through electrification.

Changes to insurance premiums and  
coverage of assets, and increasing capital 
requirements.

Increase in load and renewable  
generation connections to support the  
State Government’s 80 per cent emissions 
reduction target. 

Climate change response and impacts
Western Power continues to prepare for the impacts of climate  
change, and in FY22 we advanced our understanding of the risks and 
mitigations for our community. We continued our work to integrate the 
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) framework 
into our business and furthered our efforts to assess, mitigate and  
disclose climate-related risks and opportunities.
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Risk management

Risk management is embedded in our  
business and is delivered in accordance  
with our Assurance and Risk Policy. 

Our system of risk management is aligned  
to the international standard for risk  
management ISO 31000:2018 with our risk 
approach verified with the Board annually. 

Western Power operates with Risk Appetite 
Statements, that set out the nature and  
extent of risks the Board has approved that 
Western Power may take in the achievement 
of its strategic visions and objectives. 

Climate change has been considered  
within the statements. Climate change  
risk assessments from a short, medium  
and longer term position have been  
undertaken by the business to identify  
risks and opportunities associated with  
a transition to a decarbonised future  
and impacts to the network.

Metrics and targets

We report our emissions to the Clean  
Energy Regulator (CER) in-line with the  
National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting 
(NGER) Scheme, which requires disclosure  
of Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas 
emissions, energy production and energy 
consumption. Scope 1 emissions are those 
emissions directly produced by Western 
Power, while Scope 2 emissions are indirect 
emissions such as from power consumed  
by the business. 

We’ve decreased our greenhouse gas  
emissions by more than 30 per cent since  
we first began reporting under the National 
Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007. 
This has been achieved through an increase 
in renewable generation on the network  
resulting in decreased carbon intensity  
as well as reduced energy losses across  
the network.

We look forward to supporting the State 
Government’s Sectoral Emissions Reduction 
Strategy and Whole of System Plan 2023 to 
enable the transition to a low carbon future.

Total emissions 

Total greenhouse gas emissions at the  
end of FY21 fell by 10 per cent from the previous 
year. The FY22 emissions will be prepared  
in July 2022 for submission to the CER and 
issued by the end of October 2022.

Western Power is working to 
achieve net-zero emissions  
by 2050, in-line with the WA  
Government’s Climate Policy.

Sustainability

For Western Power, sustainability is  
about meeting the needs of current and 
future generations by considering social 
advancement, environmental protection, 
climate change and economic prosperity  
in our business activities and decisions. 

All three pillars of sustainable development  
– social, environmental and economic  
sustainability, contribute to a sustainable 
future for the Western Australian community 
and beyond.

This year, Western Power adopted the  
United Nations Sustainable Development 
Goals (SDGs) as our framework for  
understanding and actioning sustainability 
in our business.

Through extensive consultation within  
our business and with consumers, we  
selected five goals where we can have  
the biggest impact.

• Affordable and clean energy
• Decent work and economic growth
• Reduced inequalities
• Responsible consumption and production
• Climate action

The aspiration and intent of the SDGs  
align closely with the aspirations of the 
Western Australian community who tell  
us they want more reliable and increasingly 
renewable electricity at a fair price, and  
a network that supports future economic 
opportunities and jobs.

Greenhouse gas emissions

  Network losses
  Contractor
  Natural gas
  Wastewater treatment
  Streetlights
  Electricity purchases
  Plant
  Fleet
  Generation
  SF62015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

0

t C
O

2-
e



Western Power Annual Report 2022 | 3938 | Western Power Annual Report 2022

Safety
Safety is our fundamental value – we respect and take care of each  
other, our community and the environment. We work in a high-risk  
environment which will continually present challenges in keeping our 
workforce safe.

While our safety performance has  
demonstrated a satisfactory level, through 
the implementation of plans, initiatives and 
improvement measures, we continually 
strive to achieve a culture that will create  
an incident and injury free workplace. 

This aspiration requires an ongoing and  
unwavering commitment to improvement, 
and the projects and strategies targeted  
for the next year will assist in managing  
the risks that will enable our workforce to  
go home safe and healthy every day. 

Safety Maturity Strategy

In accordance with our strategic plan, our 
Safety Maturity Strategy has shifted its focus 
to the Work Health and Safety (WHS) Risk 
Management program, with an emphasis 
upon the continued implementation of  
Critical Risk Management. This year we  
finalised our Critical Risk Management  
workshops in consultation with our employees, 
and drafted performance standards for 
each of the controls associated with our  
nine key critical risks.

An Executive sponsor has been identified  
for each of the key risks and will form part  
of the overall implementation plan as we  
roll out the program to the workforce. 

As a component of the WHS Risk  
Management program we’ve completed  
extensive engagement with the workforce  
to ensure consistent and effective risk  
management practices, including the  
identification of psychological risks through 
the People at Work Survey. 

Introduction of a critical control monitoring 
process will provide us with transparency  
in terms of the application and performance 
of the critical controls in our day-to-day 
operations and take us closer to achieving 
our vision, ‘everyone goes home safe and 
healthy every day’.

Our Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Tailoring our Health and Wellbeing program 
to meet the needs of our employees is key 
to creating positive change in people’s lives.  
Each year we invite our employees to  
participate in a health and wellbeing  
assessment which provides great insight  
into the health and wellbeing of our  
workforce. In 2022 we achieved a record  
participation rate of 44 per cent, up from  
28 per cent in 2021. The results show that 
overall, there has been an upward shift  
in those making positive changes in their 
everyday lives.  

This year we provided our workforce with  
the opportunity for a free consultation with 
medical professionals. The information  
provided has assisted in informing the  
next phase of our health and wellbeing  
program to target the areas where we  
can derive the most benefit. 

We’ve also launched a suite of seven  
new specialist helplines in the areas of  
First Nations, LGBTQI+, Domestic & Family 
Violence, Eldercare, Disability & Carers,  
Youth & Student, and Spiritual & Pastoral 
Care. The counsellors providing this support 
are specialists within their area, with specific 
social or cultural experience, knowledge  
and understanding.

Game Plan

Our 360 Aware platform is an industry  
focused campaign which emphasises the 
importance for contractors and trades to  
be fully present and aware of their  
surroundings, always. An important part  
of 360 Aware is our Game Plan campaign 
(pictured left). 

The campaign encourages people working 
near electricity to adopt an ‘elite athlete’ 
mindset and make a solid Game Plan  
before kicking off every day. This year to  
support the campaign we developed an  
online learning tool to support businesses  
to build their Game Plan. This free online 
training course coaches workers on how  
to work safe near our network and equips 
them with the knowledge to make safe  
decisions every day.

Shocks and Tingles

We continued to educate the community 
through our Shocks and Tingles campaign,  
in partnership with the Office of Building  
and Energy. Our campaign reminds the 
community to report any shock or tingle  
as it may be a sign of an electric fault.  
This year, the campaign resulted in a  
15 per cent increase in reports compared  
to the same period in 2021. 

Make the Safe Call Campaign

Our successful Make the Safe Call campaign 
continued this year. The campaign depicts 
scenarios we see often at Western Power, 
through the stories of characters, Jan and 
Jim. The engaging campaign balances light 
and serious tones, providing information 
about what to do in an electrical emergency.

The campaign acts as a reminder that no 
matter what the electrical emergency, we’re 
ready for anything and audiences can be 
too. We continued to profile the two most 
common causes of unplanned outages, 
vegetation and airborne objects contacting 
powerlines.
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Our people
Everything we do at Western Power is driven by our people.  
They live and work in our communities to provide safe and reliable  
power year-round, and it is through their passion and dedication  
that we are able to deliver our vision. 

For more than 77 years, Western Power has remained at the forefront  
of the energy industry by innovating through our people and leveraging 
their ideas. Our talented and dedicated workforce continue this  
tradition today.
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Employee engagement

Our employee engagement survey  
is an important way for employees to 
tell us about their experience at Western 
Power, and what’s really important  
to them in the workplace. We had a 
fantastic response to our 2022 survey 
placing us in a strong position to  
understand our employee’s working  
experience, both what’s working well 
and where it can be improved. 

Our results showed a healthy level of 
employee engagement with an overall  
score of 75 per cent (slightly lower than 
last year’s 77 per cent on the equivalent 
measure). 

These steadily high engagement  
levels reflect that our workforce feels 
positive and proud to work for Western 
Power and that there is a commitment  
from our management team to our 
people and from our people to the 
community.

Positives from the survey include:

• our commitment towards safety

• the challenge and interest provided   
 by your job and its importance  
 to our community

• the way you recognise and support   
 each other within your teams

• the support you receive from your   
 formal leader

• the flexible working arrangements  
 we have available.

Government mandatory COVID-19  
vaccination policy

Western Power successfully  
implemented the government’s  
mandated vaccination requirement 
and ensured that no employees  
attended the workplace without  
having received the required  
vaccination status. 

In support of the State Government 
announcement of mandatory COVID-19 
vaccinations, Western Power provided 
specific consultation sessions through 
the Employee Assistance Program.

These sessions were offered as a  
walk-in consultation service to receive 
independent professional support in 
dealing with matters such as COVID-19 
vaccinations and employment,  
and other mental health concerns  
and challenges.  

Regional Benefits Policy

In March 2022, we introduced new  
regional benefits to support employees 
at regional depots in isolated locations.

Taking feedback from both the  
Communications, Electrical and  
Plumbing Union of Australia (CEPU)  
and Australian Services Union (ASU)  
we developed and introduced a new 
remote benefits policy to assist those 
staff given the lack of services that  
are reasonably accessible from  
those areas.

Left: Operational crews in Kalgoorlie.
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Entry Level Programs

We continue to create employment  
opportunities for young Western Australians 
through a range of entry level programs. 

This year, we recruited 31 new apprentices 
– the largest intake in eight years – across 
electrical and line worker apprenticeships. 
Included in the new recruits were seven 
women and five people from Indigenous 
backgrounds.  

A further mid-year intake saw an  
additional eight cable jointing apprentices 
join the business in July 2022. 

In addition to offering apprenticeships,  
two cohorts have completed  
pre-apprenticeship programs to assist  
in building our entry level pipeline. These 
pre-apprenticeship programs are funded  
by Western Power and offer opportunities  
to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander  
peoples and other candidates to prepare  
for the apprentice program.

Our graduate program has been  
expanded with recruitment completed  
for the next intake. This will see an  
increased number of graduates starting  
next financial year across engineering  
and business disciplines. 

A feature of this expanded program will  
be to also offer additional vacation and  
intern placements.

We continue to offer three scholarships  
in partnership with tertiary institutions.  
These scholarships are provided for  
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander  
peoples, Women in Engineering and  
Science, Technology, Engineering, and  
Mathematics (STEM). In 2022 two recent 
scholarship recipients commenced to  
the graduate program.

Diversity and Inclusion

In the past year we invested in furthering  
the understanding of, and commitment  
to, a more inclusive workforce and we  
increased the diversity of our workforce,  
with representation from over 96 countries 
across the world.

• Launch of ‘Innovate’ RAP - represents  
 further investment in and commitment  
 to reconciliation. Our Innovate RAP helps  
 us plan and deliver key milestones for  
 reconciliation, through partnerships,  
 education, advocacy, events and blended  
 learning options.  

• Aboriginal Cultural Awareness training  
 (online and workshops) including bespoke  
 three-day workshops focusing on  
 “balancing both worlds”. These workshops  
 are delivered by selected training  
 providers from the Aboriginal and Torres  
 Strait Islander community in WA metro  
 and regional areas.

• Refresh of the Disability Access and  
 Inclusion Plan (DAIP) – this provides   
 a plan and pathway to furthering access  
 and inclusion initiatives for employees and  
 customers with disabilities, fulfilling the  
 seven key DAIP outcomes as specified  
 by the Department of Communities.

• Supporting the National Disability  
 Services (NDS) program, Building the  
 Talent Pool (BTTP), we’ve increased  
 learning and development opportunities  
 for employees while providing employment  
 opportunities for jobseekers living with  
 disability.

• Disability Recruitment Confidence  
 workshops focussed on the entire  
 recruitment lifecycle. These workshops  
 help build aware, sensitive and supportive  
 team environments for people with  
 disability or living with disability.

• Participated in a project with the UWA  
 Innovation Academy, focusing on  
 “How can innovation improve the  
 recruitment outcomes for applicants  
 with a disability”.

Some of the key  
milestones achieved  
in the past 12 months:

In the past year we invested in 
furthering the understanding of, 
and commitment to, a more  
inclusive workforce and we  
increased the diversity of our 
workforce, with representation 
from over 96 countries across  
the world.

Empowering our  
employees of tomorrow, 
as well as our team   
today
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Diversity 
equity and 
inclusion

Walking Together
National Reconciliation Week and NAIDOC

Diverse Sexualities and Genders
Wear It Purple Day, International Day  
Against Homophobia, Biphobia and  
Transphobia (IDAHOBIT) and Pride WA

Mosaic 
Harmony, Lunar New Year and International 
Language Translation days

Gender Equity 
International Women’s Day and Pink Ribbon

Focus Ability
Work Ability Week and International Day  
of People with Disability 

YEN
Youth Day and Youth Week

Each month we acknowledge a particular 
day of significance to help drive employee 
engagement. Each ENG hosts a diversity  
day of significance to encourage new  
membership initiatives, in safe and inclusive 
spaces, for dialogue and engagement from 
a lived experience and ally perspective.

Right: Western Australian artist Buffie Corunna with  
her artwork ‘Boordakan – Future path or direction’.

Through the passion and commitment of volunteers that make up our 
Employee Network Groups (ENG) we’re able to deliver meaningful and  
impactful activities and events that bring the essence of the Diversity 
and Inclusion principles to life – diversity, equity and inclusion. 

46 | Western Power Annual Report 2022

Employee 
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Commitment to RAP

Western Power operates on Noongar,  
Amangu and Wangkatha land. We recognise 
the rich history and culture of Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander peoples and celebrate 
their achievements, while acknowledging 
the past and the challenges they continue 
to face today. We’re proud to have a long 
history of Aboriginal and Torres Strait  
Islander employment, creating important 
connections to community that help us  
to truly understand the land on which  
we operate.

We’re committed to attracting and  
retaining a diverse workforce and strongly 
encourage applications from Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islanders peoples for Western 
Power roles. Our long-term goal is to have a 
workforce that better reflects the community 
we serve. Five of our 31 new apprentices are 
from Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
backgrounds and will be learning specialist 
skills in nationally accredited programs. 

We launched our first RAP, Reflect in 2017  
to help with our goals for reconciliation.  
We learnt much through this important  
and necessary process by partnering with 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander  
community members. Through this RAP,  
we achieved a number of key reconciliation 
objectives that includes awarding our first 
contracts to Aboriginal businesses in support 
of the State Government’s Aboriginal Policy 
and introducing a new Sustainable  
Procurement Policy that sets targets to 
award contracts to Aboriginal business’ 
each year.

Building on previous successes, we released 
our second RAP – Innovate – in June 2022.  
The Innovate RAP provides tangible actions  
to strengthen our relationship with the  
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander  
community. We’ve set ambitious targets  
to help us take a leading role in building 
meaningful change in our society.

Our Innovate RAP takes us on a journey  
of ‘truth telling’ through cultural education 
and competence, investing in services and 
partnerships and ‘walking together’ to  
better society, specifically for Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander peoples.

We have established a Reconciliation  
Committee to further develop our  
relationships with Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander stakeholders. We want to develop 
a greater understanding of their rich history 
and culture, and to respect their diversity  
while providing opportunities to participate 
in and lead our initiatives. 

We believe that our society will be successful 
only when Aboriginal and Torres Strait  
Islander peoples fully participate, as equals,  
in the full range of opportunities found in WA. 
Everyone at Western Power has a role to play 
in reconciliation and our expectation is that 
all our staff will remain culturally aware and 
respectful in their duties, at all times.

Our stories

Our crews and depots 

Our crews responded to numerous weather  
and emergency events during the year, 
including the Christmas heatwave  
outages, four simultaneous large fires in  
the south-west coupled with the pole top 
fires in the metropolitan area, and the  
wettest July in 26 years.

Our crews also continued to address network 
reliability for our customers in Horrocks,  
Port Gregory and Northampton.

This was in addition to the ongoing recovery 
work from Tropical Cyclone Seroja and the 
continuing impacts of COVID-19 on staffing 
resources. Throughout it all our operational  
maintenance crews remained dedicated  
to delivering for the community.

To better support crews and deliver  
operational goals under our Corporate  
Strategy, a review of the Operational  
Maintenance structure was undertaken.  
This will better position our maintenance 
teams to meet the evolving demands of  
our community, now and into the future. 

In May 2022, we went live with a new  
structure which included rezoning  
maintenance areas right across the SWIS.  
The new structure, based around three  
zones – North, South and East – was  
designed collaboratively, with many team 
members generously giving their time  
and submitting their ideas throughout  
the process.

The new structure is already proving to be 
beneficial, providing more flexibility and 
empowering teams to work better with their 
local communities. 

As our network continues to transform, 
bringing in new and emerging renewable 
technologies, our business will need to  
build more diverse skills and for those  
skills to be easily transferable through our 
maintenance teams. 

The number of women in leadership  
roles increased during the restructure, 
demonstrating the exceptional performance 
of our diverse workforce. 
Above: Our employees at our Pinjarra depot.

Over time, each region’s power 
needs will start to look very  
different and so our ability to  
rapidly share knowledge will be 
more important than ever. 
Our new strategic approach  
to operational maintenance  
will better enable this.
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In the community
The WA community has invested in the State’s transmission and  
distribution assets for more than 70 years. We’re proudly owned by the 
people of WA. Community engagement is critical and we have ongoing 
programs to ensure this. 

Circuit Breakers

Western Power’s innovative and exciting  
science school-based engagement  
program Circuit Breakers continued in  
2021-22. 

What began as a small science,  
technology, engineering and mathematics 
(STEM) outreach program to encourage 
primary students’ interest and enjoyment in 
STEM subjects has grown into an integrated 
education-wide initiative with more than 80 
public and independent schools taking part 
in the program in 2021-22. 

Designed collaboratively by teachers  
and engineers, it engages and challenges 
Year 4-6 students to think outside the box, 
challenge their assumptions and widen  
their decision-making through imagination.

The program not only helps students  
by making STEM subjects seem more  
accessible and fun by providing them with 
Micro:bit miniature computers (pictured 
above), but also builds the confidence of 
many teachers by giving them access to 
unique teaching and learning guides.

Participants can access Western Power 
mentors, who provide expertise and  
guidance to inspire students to think and 
operate like STEM professionals. 

One of the reasons for the program’s  
success is how eagerly schools, teachers 
and students have adopted it and  
welcomed Western Power into their  
curriculum.

Community Engagement

As a critical service and infrastructure  
provider for the SWIS with around 3,080  
employees, we’re part of the WA community. 
Our people live and work in the communities 
they serve, so positively engaging with our  
community stakeholders has always been 
part of our DNA. 

Our Community Engagement team has  
ongoing interactions with stakeholders  
on a range of initiatives. 

These include emerging technology projects, 
capital works projects, customer funded 
work, planned maintenance works,  
attendance at regional shows and field days, 
liaising with landowners and building  
relationships with Traditional Owners.

The table on the following page provides  
a summary of the major engagements  
conducted in the 2021-22 financial year:
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Event Date Description

Goldfields Load  
Forum

14 September 2021 Hosted a forum which included a number 
of large mining customers in the east of 
the SWIS to present an energy solution that 
meets their requirements.

Mid West Major  
Projects Update

15-16 September 
2021

Provided an update on the SPS program  
in the Mid West region to various  
stakeholders.

Emergency Services 
Awareness Event 

9 October 2021 Attended Emergency Services Awareness 
Event hosted by Bunnings Wangara with 
Western Power community van.

Community Battery 
– Baldivis

December 2021 and 
January 2022

Door knocking in Baldivis to talk to nearby 
residents about the proposed Community 
Battery planned for Pike Road in Baldivis.

Shire of  
Northampton and 
Shire of Chapman 
Valley Meetings

7 January 2022 Meeting with key stakeholders from the 
Shires of Northampton and Shire of  
Chapman Valley to provide an update  
on outages, as well as plans to improve 
reliability.

Kalbarri microgrid 
launch

2 February 2022 The official launch of Kalbarri microgrid  
held following the successful commissioning 
and completion of the project in late 2021. 
There was a facility tour for key stakeholders 
and a free community event at the Kalbarri 
foreshore.

City of Rockingham 
presentation

15 February 2022 Presentation to the City of Rockingham  
on Community Battery projects.

Walpole pumped- 
hydro community  
information session

21 April 2022 An open community information session 
held in Walpole to provide an update to  
local stakeholders on the project.

Briefing with  
Shane Love (MLA)

29 April 2022 Briefing with Shane Love (MLA) on SPS  
and reliability performance in the Moore 
electorate.

Shire of Perenjori 
presentation

20 May 2022 Presentation on Perenjori microgrid project 
to Shire of Perenjori representatives.

Reconciliation  
Action Plan Launch 
– Innovate RAP

17 June 2022 Energy Minister Bill Johnston, representatives 
from Reconciliation WA and our community 
partners Waalitj Foundation and Clontarf 
Foundation played an important role in 
launching our Innovate RAP.

Major engagements conducted in the 2021-22 financial year

Show Date Description

Chapman Valley 4 September 2021 Attended Chapman Valley show held by 
Chapman Valley Agricultural Society. Three 
local charities/organisations participated  
in our ‘Power to the People’ program.

Northampton 11 September 2021 Attended Northampton show held by the 
Northampton Agricultural Society. Four local 
charities/organisations participated in our 
‘Power to the People’ program.

Moora 18 September 2021 Attended Moora show held by Central  
Midlands Agricultural Society. Three local 
charities/organisations participated in our 
‘Power to the People’ program.

Kelmscott 16 October 2021 Attended Kelmscott Agricultural show held 
by Kelmscott Agricultural Society. Three  
local charities/organisations participated  
in our ‘Power to the People’ program.

Gidgegannup 30 October 2021 Attended Gidgegannup show held by 
Gidgegannup Agricultural Society. Three 
local charities/organisation participated  
in our ‘Power to the People’ program

Margaret River 6 November 2021 Attended Margaret River show held by  
Central Midlands Agricultural Society. Three 
local charities/organisations participated  
in our ‘Power to the People’ program.

Albany 12-13 November 2021 Attended Albany show held by Albany  
Agricultural Society. Three local charities/
organisations participated in our ‘Power to 
the People’ program.

Regional Shows

AA5 Community 
and Customer  
Engagement  
Program

July 2021 to  
June 2022

Delivered a research report summarising 
our multi-method engagement program 
that included over 800 hours of engagement 
with more than 2000 participants, to deliver 
insights and feedback that were meaningfully 
incorporated into the February 2022 AA5  
submission. Engagement continued beyond 
the submission via community reference 
groups and stakeholder forums.  
Engagement with key stakeholders will  
continue into the next financial year.
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Our energy evolution – bringing it to  
the community

The way we use power is changing and 
we are helping to shape the network of the 
future by implementing projects with more 
sustainable and reliable technologies, in 
communities across the SWIS. 

Kalbarri microgrid

Every community has unique energy  
needs and to support the development  
of the Kalbarri microgrid project a  
community reference group was formed 
with local stakeholders and community 
members who expressed a preference  
for a renewable energy solution to address 
their power reliability issues. 

To mark the successful completion of  
the Kalbarri microgrid project, we hosted  
a free community event at the Kalbarri  
foreshore that was attended by the Minister 
for Energy, Western Power executives,  
representatives from local and State  
Government, Mid West Development  
Commission, community reference group, 
local community members and media.  
Key stakeholders were also provided  
a private tour of the microgrid facility.   

Here are two examples of new and  
innovative projects that are connecting 
everyone in the community to an exciting 
energy future.

Walpole pumped-hydro project

On 21 April 2022, we hosted an open community 
information session in Walpole to provide  
an update on the pumped-hydro project. 
About 70 people attended the event  
including Energy Minister Bill Johnston,  
Acting Western Power CEO Sam Barbaro, 
Warren-Blackwood MLA Jane Kelsbie and 
PRD Engineering Director Colin Stonehouse.

Introducing Power to the People  

In 2021 we expanded our presence at  
regional shows around the State to engage 
with our customers face-to-face via  
an interactive and competitive ‘game’ called 
Power to the People (pictured above).

Power to the People is designed to  
educate participants on how power can be 
generated while providing the opportunity  
to support local community charities. Visitors 
to the Western Power stand use hand pedals 
to race against the clock for the fastest time 
to light up a target and scores are displayed 
on a leader board. One of three nominated 
charities scores a point every time someone 
races for them and the charity with the most 
points receives a majority share of the $1,000 
donation allocated to each show. 

Since the inception of Power to the People,  
22 charities have participated in the  
program at seven regional shows, with  
a total of $7,000 of social investment  
funding provided by Western Power.
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Environment

All our projects undergo a rigorous  
environmental assessment that exists  
to protect and preserve the natural  
environment we’re working in. 

This year we continued to collaborate  
with our key regulatory stakeholders the  
Department of Biodiversity, Conservation 
and Attractions (DBCA), Department of  
Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) 
and Department of Planning, Lands and  
Heritage (DPLH) in implementing initiatives  
to conserve wildlife, minimise pollution,  
protect cultural heritage and maintain  
regulatory compliance across the network. 

Our Safety, Health and Environment  
Policy incorporates the core principles  
of environmental management and  
preserving the natural environment  
through appropriate planning and design  
of the network. Environmental, heritage  
and planning assessments continue to  
be undertaken for all activities associated 
with the life-cycle of the network,  
non-network assets and new projects.  

We have ongoing strategic environmental 
programs in place to manage environmental 
sensitive areas, contaminated sites and  
reduce noise impacts. 

Our alignment with the UN Sustainability 
Development Goals was predicated and 
shaped by our long-term commitment  
to environmental outcomes across the  
life-cycle of our network. Whether mitigating 
access impacts on threatened flora species, 
installing bird diverters to prevent bird strikes 
or proactive measures to prevent pollution, 
every strategy, program and project  
goes through a rigorous environmental  
assessment.

We’ve committed to ensuring our staff are 
trained in relevant environmental processes 
including our industry-recognised support  
for Green Card training, environmental  
design training and regulatory approval 
management tools. We’ve contributed to 
proactive transformer spill mitigation via  
ester oil and containment bund standards. 

We’ve also worked closely with the business 
during extreme weather events including 
seasonal bushfires and Tropical Cyclone  
Seroja, providing clear environmental  
guidance during initial response and a  
focus on improved environmental outcomes 
during recovery. These recovery outcomes 
include our transition to new technologies 
that will drive a more sustainable and  
reliable network for our customers.

AA5 
Every five years Western Power prepares  
an access arrangement review so we can 
revise the services we offer and update  
the prices we charge.
Our submission for the fifth access  
arrangement period (referred to as the  
AA5 proposal) was submitted to the  
Economic Regulation Authority on 1 February 
2022 and covers the five-year period from  
1 July 2022 to 30 June 2027 (AA5 period).  
Our proposal outlined our key activities and 
investments for the AA5 period, and the  
network tariffs that will reflect the safe,  
reliable and efficient delivery of our services. 
It also discussed and reviewed what we  
delivered over the previous regulatory  
period (AA4 period).
Our AA5 proposal recognises that existing 
network assets are ageing and approaching 
end of life, while at the same time  
technological progress is rapidly reducing 
the cost of non-wires alternatives.
In addition, the community is continuing  
to install rooftop solar systems, and  
expects Western Power to enable a  
renewable-powered future.
To respond to these drivers, the AA5  
proposal focuses on moving as safely and 
affordably as possible to the required future 
version of the network, investing in both  
existing assets and new technology.
We will deliver for the community by:
• Ensuring safety is at the centre of  
 everything we do. We will continue  
 to use our risk-based approach and  
 experience to continuously seek ways  
 to reduce the cost of maintaining safety  
 for our customers, our people, and  
 the community.

• Delivering on customer needs and  
 responding to the challenges of a  
 changing energy environment, while  
 balancing the cost of delivering safe and  
 reliable services from an ageing network.  
 Our proposal provides price decreases  
 for customers (in real terms). This means  
 nominal price increases for the average  
 network bill will be lower than the rate  
 of inflation. 
• Maintaining current levels of reliability  
 performance for the distribution and  
 transmission networks, as well as  
 ancillary services, with a dedicated  
 hot spots program. 
 Customers have reiterated their support  
 for further investments to improve  
 network resilience in response to extreme  
 climate events through undergrounding  
 and ensuring there are sufficient staff to  
 restore supply when outages occur.
• Integrating and managing the impact  
 of DER, such as solar photovoltaic and  
 storage solutions (battery systems,  
 EVs) and optimising the transition to  
 a modular grid.
• Decarbonising our community,  
 consistent with the WA Government’s  
 Climate Policy.
The coming decade represents a key  
period of transformational investment  
to enable a generational shift in the  
electricity system and Western Power has  
been working closely with Energy Policy  
WA (EPWA) and Australian Energy Market 
Operator (AEMO) in the development and  
implementation of the State Government’s 
Energy Transformation Strategy.  

Our stories

At Western Power, we recognise 
that we’re lucky to live in a place 
with such unique biodiversity  
and that we play an important 
role in protecting it.
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Directors’ report
The directors of Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western 
Power (Western Power) present this report in accordance with Schedule 
4, clause 6 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act). It is for  
the reporting year ended 30 June 2022, with comparative amounts for 
the previous reporting year from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

Western Power’s directors

The below persons were directors of Western Power as at the date of this report:

Name Duration

Colin Beckett AO (Board Chair) From 29/04/2015*

Greg Martin (Deputy Board Chair) From 29/04/2015

Kathryn Barrie From 28/05/2019

Elisa Fear From 01/11/2020

Denise Goldsworthy AO From 01/01/2018

Monish Paul From 01/11/2020

Eva Skira AM From 22/11/2017

Directors who retired during the current reporting year

Nil.

Information on directors as at the date of this report

Legend
ARC = Audit and Risk Committee
RNC = Remuneration and Nominations Committee
SHESC = Safety, Health, Environment and Sustainability Committee

Director Profile
Committee  
responsibilities

Colin Beckett AO 
Board Chair
Non-executive 
director
MA (Cantab)

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current 
term expires on 09/08/2023 – albeit Mr Beckett 
has elected to retire from Western Power’s Board 
effective 31/08/2022.

Experience and expertise: Mr Beckett retired from 
a 40 year career in oil and gas in 2014. Prior to  
his retirement Mr Beckett held senior executive  
positions in Australia with Chevron, Mobil and BP.
In recent years, Mr Beckett has previously held the 
following non-executive positions:
• Chair of:
– Australian Petroleum Producers and Explorers  
   Association (APPEA)
– Perth Airport Pty Ltd.
• Chancellor of Curtin University.
Mr Beckett read engineering at Cambridge  
University and has a Master of Arts. He was  
awarded an honorary doctorate from Curtin  
University in 2019, and was previously a fellow of 
the Australian Institute of Engineers.
Mr Beckett is a graduate member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors.
Current directorship: Deputy Chair and  
non-executive director of Beach Energy Pty Ltd.

RNC member
SHESC member

Greg Martin  
Deputy Board Chair
Non-executive 
director
B.Ec 
LLB 
FAIM 
MAICD

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current 
term expires on 09/08/2024.
Experience and expertise: Mr Martin has over 40 
years’ experience in the energy, utilities, resources, 
financial services and infrastructure sectors in 
Australia, New Zealand and internationally, having 
spent 25 years with the Australian Gas Light  
Company Limited (AGL), including five years as 
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director.
After leaving AGL, Mr Martin was the Chief Executive 
Officer of the infrastructure division of Challenger 
Financial Services Group and, subsequently, 
Managing Director of Murchison Metals Limited.
Current directorships:
• Chair of:
- East Coast Rail
- Hunter Water Corporation
- Mawson Infrastructure Group Inc
- Provaris Energy Ltd
- Sierra Rutile Holdings Limited.
• Non-executive director of Power and Water  
   Corporation.

ARC Chair

* Mr Beckett retires as Western Power’s Board Chair on 31/08/2022. Ms Goldsworthy has been appointed  
 Western Power’s Board Chair with effect from 01/09/2022.
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Director Profile
Committee  
responsibilities

Kathryn Barrie
Non-executive 
director
B.Bus

Appointed with effect from 28/05/2019, current 
term expires on 28/05/2024.
Experience and expertise: Ms Barrie has over  
20 years of experience across the energy and  
education sectors in the Western Australian  
State Government.
Ms Barrie has over 14 years of energy industry  
experience gained through roles with the State 
Government’s Energy Policy WA (formerly the  
Public Utilities Office) and the former Office of  
Energy, with a particular focus on energy market-
regulation, financial analysis and implementing 
major energy reforms.
Prior to joining State Government, Ms Barrie spent 
13 years in the private sector, primarily working in 
management consulting firms, gaining a broad 
range of experience including in developing  
performance reporting frameworks for companies 
in the energy and insurance sectors.
Ms Barrie holds a bachelor’s degree in business, 
with majors in finance and accounting.
Current directorships: Not currently a director of 
any other entity.

RNC member

Elisa Fear
Non-executive 
director
B.Comm 
MBA 
GAICD

Appointed with effect from 01/11/2020, current  
term expires on 31/10/2023.
Experience and expertise: Ms Fear is an  
accomplished non-executive director and has 
spent over 10 years on boards within the  
infrastructure, education, finance and disability 
services industries. Ms Fear has also served on 
board sub-committees as Chair and member.
Ms Fear brings extensive financial executive  
experience from roles in investment banking  
including equity capital markets, debt, advisory 
and venture capital. This is overlaid with solid 
commercial experience from owning and running 
businesses.
Ms Fear is a graduate member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors and holds a Master 
of Business Administration (Finance).
Ms Fear is committed to providing support for 
women and children facing domestic violence  
and financial abuse.
Current directorships:
• Non-executive director of:
- Good Sammy Enterprises
- Financial Toolbox.
• Member of Curtin University Council.

ARC member
SHESC member

Director Profile
Committee  
responsibilities

Denise  
Goldsworthy AO
Non-executive 
director
B.Met (Hons1) 
FAIM 
FTSE 
GAICD

Appointed with effect from 01/01/2018, latest term 
expires on 31/08/2025 – being three years from  
Ms Goldsworthy’s new appointment as Western 
Power’s Board Chair effective 01/09/2022.
Experience and expertise: Ms Goldsworthy is an 
experienced non-executive director and advisor 
on research, technology and innovation.  
Ms Goldsworthy has senior executive and/or 
non-executive experience in manufacturing 
(steel), infrastructure, mining (iron ore, industrial 
minerals), technology/innovation and tertiary 
education sectors.
Ms Goldsworthy is the Managing Director and 
Owner of Alternate Futures – established  
specifically to work at the interface between  
Australia’s research organisations, tech-start-ups 
and industry.
Ms Goldsworthy was named the 2010 Telstra  
Australian Business Woman of the Year, was  
inducted into the Western Australian Women’s  
Hall of Fame in 2011 and was made an Officer of 
the Order of Australia in the 2020 Queen’s Birthday 
Honours List.
Current directorships:
• Chair of:
- Gascoyne Gateway Ltd
- the Trustees of the Navy Clearance Diver Trust.
• Non-executive director of:
- ASC Pty Ltd
- Leichardt Industrials Pty Ltd.
• Chancellor of Edith Cowan University.
• Member of:
- Cooperative Research Centres Advisory  
   Committee
- Curtin University Commercialisation Advisory    
   Board.

SHESC Chair
RNC member
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Director Profile
Committee  
responsibilities

Monish Paul
Non-executive 
director
B.Bus 
MBA

Appointed with effect from 01/11/2020, current term 
expires on 31/10/2023.
Experience and expertise: Mr Paul has several  
decades of experience in shaping and executing 
public policy, corporate strategy and digital  
transformation, having worked across a range of 
industries both in the public and private sector.
With substantial executive experience working  
in IBM, Deloitte, Arthur Andersen, and Federal and 
Western Australian Government, Mr Paul has  
advised ASX 200 clients on the intersection of 
technology and business reinvention in Australia, 
spanning design, development and execution to 
transform organisations.
In July 2022, Mr Paul was appointed Senior  
Managing Director at FTI Consulting.
Mr Paul holds a Master of Business Administration 
and is an alumnus of Harvard Business School  
(Executive Program), University of Western  
Australia and Curtin University.
Mr Paul is an advocate for organisational  
diversity and for giving back to the Western  
Australian community.
Current directorships:
• Deputy Chair of Landgate.
• Non-executive director of Police & Nurses Ltd.

ARC member
SHESC member

Director Profile
Committee  
responsibilities

Eva Skira AM
Non-executive 
director
BA (Hons) 
MBA 
SF Fin 
FAICD 
FAIM 
FCIS 
FGIA

Appointed with effect from 22/11/2017, current  
term expires on 28/05/2025.
Experience and expertise: Ms Skira has a background 
in roles across banking, financial markets and  
stockbroking, along with strategic management 
consulting. Ms Skira also has more than 25 years’ 
experience as a non-executive director.
Ms Skira’s extensive previous board experience with 
commercial and government boards includes roles 
as Chair of the Water Corporation, Westscheme  
(the largest superannuation fund in Western  
Australia) and Forest Products Commission.
Ms Skira was recognised in the 2019 Australia Day 
Honours List and appointed a Member of the Order 
of Australia for her service to business through a 
range of industry and advisory roles.
Current directorships:
• Chair of:
- Association of Ministerial PJPs Ltd
- Macmahon Holdings Limited.
• Non-executive director of:
- the Trustees of St John of God Health Care Group
- WA Parks Foundation
- Western Australian Cricket Association (WACA).

RNC Chair
ARC member

Directors’ attendance at meetings

The numbers of Board and standing committee meetings held during the reporting year 
ended 30 June 2022, and each director’s attendance at those meetings, are below:

Attendee
Board

Audit and Risk 
Committee

Remuneration 
and  

Nominations 
Committee

Safety, Health, 
Environment 

and  
Sustainability 

Committee
Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

C Beckett AO 11 11 – – 4 4 4 4

G Martin 11 10 5 4 – – – –

K Barrie 11 9 – – 4 3 – –

E Fear 11 10 5 5 – – 4 4

D Goldsworthy AO 11 11 – – 4 4 4 4

M Paul 11 11 5 5 – – 4 4

E Skira AM 11 10 5 5 4 4 – –



Western Power Annual Report 2022 | 6766 | Western Power Annual Report 2022

Company Secretary

Ms May Lin Chew was appointed Western 
Power’s General Counsel and Executive  
Manager Governance and Assurance in 
December 2020. This executive role includes 
management of the secretariat, legal,  
corporate compliance, enterprise risk,  
internal audit and corporate governance 
areas of the business. The position also 
includes the role of Company Secretary of 
Western Power, which serves as the contact 
for Western Power’s Board Chair and  
directors, as well as oversight for the Board 
and Committee meetings.

Ms Chew’s appointment as Western Power’s 
Company Secretary follows an extensive 
career as a corporate lawyer in the private 
sector with a strong focus on the energy  
industry. With more than 20 years of  
international legal experience including  
London, Tokyo and The Hague, Ms Chew 
came to Western Power from Shell where  
she was Head of Legal for both its Singapore 
operations and global liquefied natural gas 
(LNG) trading business.

Ms Chew has a Bachelor of Laws from  
Murdoch University, a Bachelor of Commerce 
from the University of Western Australia,  
and is admitted as a barrister and solicitor  
of the Supreme Court of Western Australia.

Ms Chew is also a graduate member of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Western Power’s principal activities

The principal continuing functions of  
Western Power are to:

• manage, plan, develop, expand, enhance,  
 improve and reinforce the electricity  
 transmission and distribution networks  
 known as the South West Interconnected  
 Network (SWIN);

• provide and improve electricity  
 transmission and distribution services;

• provide access to services of network  
 infrastructure facilities as required and  
 authorised by Part 8 of the Electricity  
 Industry Act 2004 (WA) (which relates  
 to network access); and

• provide ancillary services.

In performing its functions, Western Power 
must act in accordance with prudent  
commercial principles and endeavour to 
make a profit consistent with maximising  
its long-term value.

There have been no significant changes 
in the nature of Western Power’s principal 
activities during the reporting year ended  
30 June 2022.

Review of operations

To avoid duplication of content, please  
refer to the front section within this  
annual report, including the messages from 
the Board Chair and Chief Executive Officer, 
for information on the operations and  
financial position of Western Power, and  
its business strategies.

Western Power’s operating results

For the reporting year ended 30 June 2022:

• Western Power achieved a net profit after  
 income tax equivalent of $400 million  
 (30 June 2021: $391 million)

• Western Power’s net cash flows excluding  
 borrowings were $221 million surplus  
 (30 June 2021: $153 million deficit). This  
 cash surplus was largely used to repay  
 $241 million in borrowings (30 June 2021:  
 financed by $175 million in borrowings).

Dividends

Details of the dividends Western Power paid to the Western Australian State Government 
during the reporting years presented, are below:

Dividends paid
2021/22 2020/21

$M Payment date $M Payment date

Final dividend – – 77 16/12/2020

Special dividend – – 7 16/12/2020

Interim dividend – – 216 10/07/2020

Total dividends paid – 300

Nil 2021/22 dividends paid

During the year ended 30 June 2022,  
Western Power did not pay the State  
Government dividends (30 June 2021:  
$300 million). This is in-line with written  
notice from the Minister for Energy, and  
pursuant to sections 126 and 127A of the  
Act respectively – being the directors  
recommended:

• a nil dividend for the year ended  
 30 June 2021 – typically payable six months  
 in arrears (by December 2021); and

• a nil interim dividend for the year ended  
 30 June 2022 – typically payable no later  
 than the financial year to which it relates  
 (by June 2022).

Dividends not recognised at the end of the 
current reporting year

Since the end of the 30 June 2022 reporting 
year the directors have resolved to recommend, 
subject to the approval of the Minister for 
Energy, a dividend of $79 million for the year 
ended 30 June 2022, being:

• a final dividend of $75 million in-line with  
 Western Power’s net profit after income tax  
 equivalent; plus

• a special dividend of $4 million for the sale  
 of land surplus to requirements.

This recommendation is reflective of  
a nil interim dividend for the year ended  
30 June 2022 in-line with written notice  
from the Minister for Energy.

For more details refer to note 25 ‘dividends’ 
in the financial statements of this financial 
report.

Matters subsequent to the end of the  
current reporting year

There are no matters or circumstances  
that have arisen since 30 June 2022 and  
the date of this report that are likely, in the 
opinion of the directors, to significantly  
affect the operations of Western Power,  
the results of those operations, or the state 
of affairs of Western Power in subsequent 
reporting years.
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Current and likely developments and their 
expected results of operations
In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 11 of 
the Act, the current and likely developments 
in Western Power’s operations and their  
expected results are set out below.

Public safety
Western Power is required to maintain  
and replace network assets in a way that 
acceptably delivers to the community a 
safe, reliable and affordable connection  
to energy.
All electrical networks in Australia  
including the SWIN, have an inherent level  
of risk in operation. This risk arises from  
environmental and weather related factors, 
which are outside of the operator’s control, 
as well as from risks that are identified as 
part of the operation’s strategies.
Safety risks associated with Western Power’s 
network are managed in accordance with 
the Asset Management System. This System 
meets the requirements of the transmission 
and distribution licenses issued by Western 
Power’s regulator, the Economic Regulation 
Authority, and:
• has been assessed as compliant with  
 the Electricity Network Safety Management  
 System (ENSMS) requirements stipulated  
 in the Australian Standard (AS) 5577  
 ENSMS and the Electricity (Network Safety)  
 Regulations 2015 (WA); and
• is certified to the requirements of the  
 International Organisation for  
 Standardisation (ISO) 55001: 2014 Asset  
 management – management systems.
Western Power’s Asset Management System 
ensures continued management of the  
network in an effective and sustainable 
manner considering the risk posed.

Asset utilisation
Western Power’s grid is in a period of  
transition, with existing network assets  
ageing, and some approaching the end  
of their expected service life. This is at the 
same time technological progress is rapidly 
reducing the cost of alternatives to  
traditional poles and wires.
In general, older network assets pose a 
greater risk, with the frequency and severity 
of failures expected to increase as the assets 
age. Western Power’s annual ‘State of the  
Infrastructure’ report as published on the 
website, details the current state and level of  
performance of the network, and highlights 
the associated risks.
The combination of Western Power’s  
ageing network assets and period of major 
technological change presents a  
challenging and complex investment  
environment. This is especially as Western 
Power strives to meet Government and  
community expectations, including more 
reliable and increasingly renewable  
electricity at a fair price, and a network  
that keeps costs low and supports future 
economic opportunities and jobs.
To best meet these needs, Western Power 
needs to evolve the current centralised  
network as safely and as affordably as  
possible, to the “modular” version of the  
grid, comprising the following three zones: 
1. A tightly meshed urban network involving  
 increasingly underground assets servicing  
 the majority of our customers
2. A hybrid network of mostly overhead  
 assets complimented by new  
 technologies such as stand-alone power  
 systems (SPS) where possible
3. An autonomous stand-alone network  
 of remote power systems such as SPS  
 and microgrids

Evolution to the above is expected to take  
a decade of transformational investment  
in Western Power’s existing network assets 
and new technology. This includes for:

• improved integration and coordination  
 of distributed energy resources (DER)  
 on the grid by utilising Western Power’s  
 advanced metering infrastructure –  
 allowing greater visibility of network  
 power flows;

• the modernisation of DER connection  
 standards; and

• increased amounts of grid-connected  
 storage to help balance periods of low  
 demand and intermittent supply.

Distributed Energy Resources (DER)

The rise in DER – including roof-top solar  
systems, battery storage, electric vehicles 
and microgrids – is fundamentally changing 
the energy value chain and driving  
increasingly complex consumption and  
production patterns. This continues to  
challenge the historical approach of  
delivering electricity one-way across  
a centralised network.

The integration of DER into Western  
Power’s traditional network presents both 
opportunities and challenges. The opportunity 
is to leverage these small-scale devices to:

• improve the safety and reliability of  
 existing network services while lowering  
 costs;

• provide new products, solutions and   
 choices to customers and the energy  
 market; and

• assist customers in maximising their  
 investment in DER.

These opportunities are tempered by  
technical network issues and barriers,  
which if not effectively coordinated could 
continue to exacerbate voltage  
management and system security risks,  
requiring intervention.

Challenges too exist around regulatory 
structures and the State Government’s  
traditional separation of generation,  
network, retail and behind-the-meter  
activities amongst Western Australia’s  
Government Trading Enterprises. This is as 
DER cross functions.

To support these opportunities and address 
the challenges, the State Government  
released a DER roadmap in April 2020 as 
part of their Energy Transformation Strategy. 
This Strategy aims to respond to the energy 
transformation underway and plan for the 
future of the Western Australian power  
system. The outcomes will influence how 
Western Power re-shapes the business  
to adopt the changing energy mix, evolve 
grid solutions, connect customers, and how 
customers interact with the grid.

The State Government’s DER roadmap forms 
part of Western Power’s plan to future-proof  
the network so as to continue to seamlessly 
connect homes, businesses and essential  
community infrastructure to an increasingly 
dynamic energy mix. The roadmap will help 
Western Power support high levels of DER on 
the network ensuring safe, secure and  
affordable electricity supply now and in the 
future. This is also fundamental to supporting  
the Government’s recently announced plans 
to retire State-owned coal power stations  
by 2030.

Western Power remains a key supporter  
of the Energy Transformation Strategy and 
DER roadmap, and continues to work with 
the State Government, other energy partners 
and the Western Australian community  
to implement.
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Climate change: decarbonisation

Like the community, Western Power is  
committed to working to achieve net-zero 
emissions by 2050. This includes supporting 
the following key network decarbonisation 
initiatives – aimed to take action to address 
climate change:

• On-going replacement of standard  
 streetlights with LED lights that not only  
 emit less carbon, but also provide a  
 longer life cycle and brighter, more  
 uniform illumination

• More extensive roll-out of SPS expected  
 to reduce Western Power’s carbon  
 footprint through the replacement and/ 
 or removal of large stretches of overhead  
 network, and to shift energy supply to  
 more renewable sources such as solar  
 and battery storage

In addition, Western Power continues to 
monitor emerged and emerging pathways 
to best and most responsibly capture  
other opportunities presented. This includes 
in the following areas:

• Electricity – the clear pathway to  
 decarbonising electricity is renewable  
 generation such as wind, solar and  
 battery power

 Renewable generation creates both  
 new opportunities and challenges for  
 Western Power including the connection  
 of these technologies to the grid. This is  
 particularly relevant as the Government  
 commits to retiring State-owned coal  
 power stations by 2030 and investing in  
 new “green power” infrastructure such  
 as wind generation, pumped hydro and  
 energy storage. Western Power has a  
 critical enabling and collaborative role 
 in this transition – namely by continuing  
 to support and improve the growth,  
 integration and connection of these  
 renewable technologies to the network.

 To assist in this, the ‘foundation regulatory  
 frameworks’ work stream of the State  
 Government’s Energy Transformation  
 Strategy proposes the introduction of  
 a Security Constrained Economic Dispatch  
 market in October 2022. This market aims  
 to improve generator access to Western  
 Power’s network by facilitating connection  
 without costly transmission augmentation  
 – thereby helping to enable access to the  
 Wholesale Electricity Market for new  
 low-cost and cleaner generation  
 technologies.

• Transport – the emerged pathway to  
 decarbonising transport is electric vehicles

 Western Power remains committed to  
 capturing opportunities presented by  
 more electric vehicles– albeit whilst 
 mitigating over-investment in the  
 technology prior to broad adoption.  
 This includes:

 – support of the State Government’s  
  development of an electric vehicle  
  strategy to transition the transport  
  sector to a low emissions future; and

 – growing the number of electric and  
  hybrid vehicles in Western Power’s fleet.
• Industry – the emerging pathway to  
 decarbonising industry is electrification,  
 being the increasing replacement of fossil  
 fuels, such as natural gas and petrol, with  
 electricity
 Electrification has the potential to increase  
 demand for Western Power’s products and  
 services. In support of this, Western Power  
 continues to:
 – take actions to ensure industry and  
  consumers can integrate their  
  electrification investments into the grid  
  and electricity market; and
 – leverage business capabilities in the  
  development of other opportunities in  
  this area.

Customer capabilities

The cohort of grid customers of the future 
will be materially more diverse than today’s  
customer group. Future grid customers will 
be increasingly more informed, more active 
and more engaged in the production and 
consumption of electricity. Future customers 
will make choices that will impact network 
investment decisions – changing how  
Western Power is required to operate.

Alternative supply options will increasingly 
make economic sense for specific  
customers or groups. The costs of  
technological substitutes for grid supplied 
electricity such as roof-top solar systems 
and batteries will continue to decline.  
Customers are expected to continue  
investing in these alternatives to lower  
their electricity costs.

New participants will also enter the  
supply chain creating new partnership  
opportunities that will enable Western Power 
to add value to the community in ways not 
previously contemplated and will also  
challenge Western Power’s existing  
operating model.

Western Power will need to ensure it has  
the relevant customer capabilities to  
operate in this more complex future.

Cyber security

Western Power like all businesses, must  
ensure it invests in appropriate levels of  
cyber security infrastructure to protect  
operations from on-going and increasing 
levels of threats. This is heightened with 
Western Power’s introduction and support  
of remote working options since the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

Western Power too, being a critical 
infrastructure provider to Western Australia 
and key part of Australia’s overall electricity 
supply, must ensure that its core service  
of delivering safe, reliable and affordable 
energy to the community, is protected from 
interference from individuals and organised 
attackers who may have a varied range  
of motivations.

Western Power is responding to these  
requirements by making targeted  
investments to protect itself from  
immediate threats as they arise, whilst  
executing a long-term program to  
continuously lift the maturity of its cyber  
security defence capabilities. The scope  
of this uplift is a prioritised, risk driven  
program providing a broad and thorough 
treatment of all cyber security domains 
based on the Australian Energy Sector  
Cyber Security Framework.

While these efforts are managed from  
within Western Power, there is a high level  
of coordination with other industry  
participants, and both state and federal  
government bodies.

Environmental, heritage and planning  
performance

Western Power’s assets and the activities 
associated with the construction, operation 
and maintenance of those assets are  
subject to State and Commonwealth  
environmental, heritage and planning  
legislation, including specific approvals  
licences and permits which support  
regulatory compliance and maintain  
minimum environmental performance  
targets.

Western Power holds a vegetation clearing 
purpose permit to allow self-assessment  
for the clearing of native vegetation under 
certain circumstances. During 2021/22, 23 
internal clearing permits were issued.  
An estimated total of 3.38 hectares of native 
vegetation was cleared during the year  
under 11 separate internal clearing permits.
Western Power maintains a licence for  
the bulk storage of oil at Kewdale Depot.  
No impacts to the environment were  
identified from the annual site audit, no  
significant incidents occurred at this site  
and no complaints were received during  
the audited period.
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Western Power holds six dangerous goods 
licences for the storage of sulfur hexafluoride 
(an insulating gas used in electrical  
equipment) and liquid petroleum gas.  
There were no remediation notices issued  
by the Department of Mines, Industry  
Regulation and Safety during 2021/22.
Western Power assets operate under a  
number of approvals issued pursuant to  
the Environmental Protection (Noise)  
Regulations 1997 (WA) due to noise from 
transformers and their cooling fans.  
In 2021/22 Western Power applied to the 
Minister for Environment for a further 10-year 
approval duration, expiring on 6 May 2034,  
in accordance with Clause 5(2) of the  
Environmental Protection (Western  
Power Electrical Distribution Transformer 
Noise Emissions) Approval 2014.
Western Power continues to await  
advice from the Department of Water  
and Environmental Regulation (DWER) in  
respect to the requested amendment of  
the Environmental Protection (Western  
Power Transmission Substation Noise  
Emissions) Approval 2005, which has  
been under consideration by the Minister  
for Environment since 2019.
Western Power is required to report  
significant environmental incidents to its 
regulators as soon as practicable. During 
2021/22 Western Power externally reported 
nine environmental incidents caused by  
operations, two of which were oil leaks  
from transformers, and the other seven  
associated with fauna impact.
Spill response is undertaken at oil leak sites 
with further investigation and remediation 
managed in consultation with environmental 
regulators, while matters of fauna impact 
are also investigated and controls (i.e. bird 
diverters/possum guards) put in place both 
to minimise the risk of impact or recurrence  
of an impact in sensitive areas.

Western Power’s Environmentally Sensitive 
Area (ESA) Program continues to support 
environmentally conscious access and land 
management across the network. In 2021/22 
there were 627 requests for ESA procedures, 
with 19 inspections conducted as part of 
improvement to the ESA Program. Western 
Power also continues to investigate and  
implement enhancements to its waste 
management approach, with 279 controlled 
waste requests in 2021/22.
In agreement with the DWER, Western Power 
prepares a six-monthly report of any spills  
or leaks in Underground Water Pollution  
Control Areas (UWPCAs), which are in place 
to protect Perth’s drinking water. A total of  
17 oil leaks within UWPCAs were reported  
to the DWER for the six months ended  
December 2021 all of which have been  
addressed through Western Power’s spill  
response process. A further nine leaks in  
UWPCAs have been identified for the six 
months ended June 2022 and will be  
reported to the DWER in accordance with  
the six-monthly review cycle. 
A major system upgrade to Western Power’s 
contaminated site program has facilitated 
a significant reduction in historic liabilities 
during 2021/22 from 150 reported sites to  
133 sites. The system upgrade has enabled 
strategic prioritisation of substation  
investigations, in addition to meeting all  
current actions required under the DWER site 
classifications. In 2021/22 following the  
investigation of 61 sites and remediation  
of 35 sites, Western Power closed 20 
registered contaminated sites and reported 
three new suspected or known  
contaminated sites to the DWER. 
Western Power has not been notified by the 
Western Australian Planning Commission 
or any other relevant planning bodies of 
non-compliance, nor been required to  
submit notification to the Ministers for  
Energy or Planning in respect of works,  
pursuant to section 60 of the Act.

No activity notices were submitted to the 
South West Aboriginal Land and Sea Council 
under Western Power’s Aboriginal Heritage 
Agreements in 2021/22. In addition to  
advocacy on the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage 
Act 2021 (WA) and alignment of Aboriginal 
Heritage activities with Western Power’s  
Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan, Western 
Power has provided targeted advice to the 
Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage 
on existing Western Power asset placement 
within the Yamatji Nation lands.

Indemnity and insurance of directors  
and officers
Western Power has entered into a deed of 
indemnity with each director. The respective 
deeds provide that:
• Western Power indemnifies the director  
 against all liabilities and costs relating  
 to proceedings that are anticipated, 
 threatened or commenced against the  
 director in relation to matters arising in the  
 course of the director acting in connection  
 with the affairs of Western Power, or  
 otherwise concerning the director holding  
 office as a director of Western Power; and
• the indemnity does not extend to claims  
 against the director by Western Power or  
 a subsidiary, or to any liability or claim  
 arising out of conduct involving a lack of  
 good faith.
Western Power holds a directors’ and  
officers’ liability insurance policy. Subject 
to the applicable terms and conditions, the 
policy will pay to or on behalf of an insured 
person, or reimburse Western Power for any 
loss paid to an insured person, in relation to 
a claim or claims made against them jointly 
or severally during the period of insurance 
by reason of any wrongful act (as defined by 
the policy) in their capacity as a director or 
officer of Western Power.
During the 2021/22 reporting year, no  
successful claims were made against the 
directors’ and officers’ component of  
the policy.
Western Power has not entered into a deed 
of indemnity with, and does not hold an  
insurance policy for, the external auditor.

Significant regulatory changes
Access arrangement 5
Access to Western Power’s network is  
regulated under the Electricity Networks  
Access Code 2004 (WA), which requires 
Western Power to submit a revised access 
arrangement (AA) to the Economic  
Regulation Authority (ERA) every five years. 
The AA defines the financial limits and  
performance targets for Western Power, and 
the expected outcomes for customers.
On:
• 1 February 2022, Western Power submitted  
 the proposed AA for the fifth access  
 period (AA5) to the ERA – covering the  
 period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2027.  
 The proposal sets out Western Power’s  
 plan to move as safely and as affordably  
 as possible to the “modular” version of the  
 grid. This is to improve Western Power’s  
 ability to respond to extreme weather  
 events, and connect more renewables  
 to the network in recognition of the State  
 Government’s Energy Transformation  
 Strategy.
• 4 March 2022, the ERA released its issues  
 paper on Western Power’s AA5 proposal  
 –  marking commencement of the public  
 consultation period. This is expected to run  
 throughout 2022. The ERA’s draft AA5  
 decision is due towards the end of  
 2022 – providing Western Power the  
 opportunity to make amendments and  
 address any issues raised during the  
 public consultation period. 
The ERA’s final AA5 decision is expected  
in early 2023 hence, actual commencement 
of the AA5 will be one year later (from 1 July 
2023). This results in a gap year (from 1 July 
2022 to 30 June 2023) – similar to the  
transition to AA4, and with the same gap 
year concept applied for AA5.
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This means Western Power’s AA5 will  
continue to have a five-year period, with 
forecast operating and capital expenditure 
for all five years to be approved as part of 
the AA5 determination process. However,  
for the gap year only (from 1 July 2022 to  
30 June 2023), the ERA has published a  
number of decisions to apply – recognising 
the determination process will not finalised 
by 1 July 2022. These include the following: 
• The AA5 decision will determine total  
 target revenue for the five-year period  
 from 1 July 2022. Western Power’s current  
 price list (2021/22) will apply until the  
 revised access arrangement comes into  
 effect. The ERA will take account of revenue  
 received for the period between 1 July 2022  
 and the commencement date of the  
 revised access arrangement when  
 determining target revenue for the  
 remaining AA5 period.
• The current service standard benchmarks  
 (AA4) will apply until the commencement  
 date of the revised access arrangement  
 (AA5)
• A service standard adjustment  
 mechanism will not apply between 1 July  
 2022 and 30 June 2023 

Other required legislative disclosures
Observance of Western Power’s Code  
of Conduct
Western Power’s Code of Conduct has been 
established to provide guidance on acting 
responsibly and ethically when completing 
tasks on behalf of Western Power.
The Code of Conduct applies to all directors, 
executive officers and employees of Western 
Power, and to all contractors performing 
activities on behalf of Western Power.  
All personnel have access to Western  
Power’s Code of Conduct.
Section 33 of the Act requires the Board  
to report to the Minister for Energy on  
observance of the Code of Conduct by all 
Western Power personnel. This report is  
submitted at the same time as Western 
Power’s annual report.

Western Power has also established  
processes and procedures to ensure  
observance of the Code of Conduct.
All Western Power personnel receive  
annual code of conduct and conflicts of  
interest training.
State Records Act 2000 (WA)
Western Power maintains and supports 
quality record keeping practices in its  
day-to-day business activities. Records 
are managed in accordance with the State 
Records Act 2000 (WA) and Western Power’s 
approved record-keeping plan.
Regular reviews of Western Power’s  
record-keeping systems and practices are 
conducted to ensure they remain efficient, 
effective and reflect business requirements.
Personnel, including contractors, are  
required to complete online record-keeping 
training prior to accessing Western Power’s 
enterprise document management system. 
Training programs are reviewed on an  
ongoing basis to ensure they reflect  
evolving business processes.

Electoral Act 1907 (WA)

In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 (WA), the below expenditure  
(exclusive of goods and services tax) was incurred by Western Power during the reporting 
year ended 30 June 2022.

Category Amount ($) Recipients
Advertising agencies 1,464,749 • Advance Press

• Clockwork Print
• CloudStoke Media
• Equilibrium Interactive
• Fremantle Press
• Paper and Spark Digital Agency
• Rebecca Martin
• Signs Ahead
• Studio Orange
• Workhouse Advertising
• Wunderman Thompson
Advertising expenditure can include costs  
associated with branding and signage; digital  
content; photography; print, video and animation 
production; public safety and educational  
campaigns; website services

Market research  
organisations

350,807 • Aha! Consulting
• Faster Horses
• Forethought
• Halloo
• Meltwater Australia
Market research expenditure can include costs  
associated with copywriting; corporate reputation, 
campaigns and strategies; social media monitoring; 
strategic initiative research

Direct mail  
organisations

364,877 • FUJIFILM Data Management Solutions
Direct mail expenditure can include costs  
associated with customer invoicing, self-reader 
cards and notifications

Media advertising 
organisations

1,672,668 • iSentia
• LinkedIn Singapore
• The Brand Agency
Media advertising expenditure can include costs  
associated with media campaigns, monitoring  
(radio/print/digital) and placements

Total expenditure 3,853,101

Rounding of amounts

Amounts presented in the directors’ report have been rounded off to the nearest million 
dollars ($M), unless otherwise stated.
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Directors’ report – remuneration
Principles used to determine the nature and 
amount of remuneration
Western Power’s remuneration policy has 
been formulated to:
• provide a market competitive  
 remuneration framework designed to  
 attract, retain and motivate a skilled  
 workforce with the capabilities and skills  
 required to effectively achieve Western  
 Power’s corporate objectives;
• adopt a commercial approach to the  
 management of remuneration, including  
 the capacity to pay, provide a clear 
 governance framework and address  
 associated risks;
• ensure employees are appropriately  
 compensated according to the value of  
 the work performed, the services they 
 provide to the company and their personal  
 performance; and
• ensure compliance with all prevailing laws,  
 applicable employment instruments and  
 relevant enterprise agreements.

Non-executive directors
The Minister for Energy approves the  
remuneration of all directors. The  
remuneration framework for non-executive 
directors incorporates fixed remuneration 
only – including a superannuation  
component.
Non-executive directors do not participate  
in any variable reward or ‘at-risk’ plan.
No remuneration is paid to any  
non-executive directors that hold a full-time 
office or position that is remunerated out 
of moneys appropriated by Parliament.

Chief Executive Officer and executives
The remuneration of the Chief Executive 
Officer is determined in accordance with the 
Act and the Salaries and Allowances Act  
1975 (WA).
As part of this, the Salaries and Allowances 
Tribunal determines the relevant salary band 
for the Chief Executive Officer’s total fixed 
remuneration – within which the Board has 
discretion to set the remuneration.

The remuneration of other executives is set 
by the Chief Executive Officer in consultation 
with the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer and other  
executive’s remuneration framework is 
based upon a total remuneration approach 
that includes base salary, superannuation 
and benefits to reflect the level of work,  
accountability and personal competency  
in the role.
The Chief Executive Officer and executives 
do not participate in any variable reward or 
‘at-risk’ plan.
Total remuneration is reviewed annually  
on the basis of government policy,  
competitive market movement and personal 
performance. There are no guaranteed  
remuneration increases included in any  
executive contracts.

Details of remuneration

Non-executive directors

For a list of Western Power’s directors during the reporting year ended 30 June 2022,  
refer to the ‘Western Power’s directors’ section at the front of this directors’ report.

The remuneration for, and duties and obligations of Western Power’s directors are  
determined under the Act.

In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act, details of the nature and amount  
of each element of remuneration for the directors during the reporting years presented,  
are below:

Total  
remuneration 
band

Number of  
directors*

Salary and 
fees^

Post- 
employment 

superannuation 
benefits^ Total^

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

$’000 # # $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$01 1 1 – – – – – –

$1 – $50 – 3 – 31 – 3 – 34

$51 – $100 5 3 50 60 15 8 65 68

$101 – $150 1 1 121 121 12 11 133 132

* During the reporting year ended 30 June 2021 the composition of the Board changed
^ Where there is more than one director in a remuneration band the average remuneration is shown
1 Ms Barrie is not remunerated by Western Power being a representative of the Western Australian State Government
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During the reporting year ended 30 June 2022, the below persons were titled executive  
officers of Western Power:

^ Mr Barbaro was appointed Western Power’s Chief Executive Officer in August 2022 – being after the reporting   
 year ended 30 June 2022
* Denotes the five highest remunerated executive officers during the reporting year ended 30 June 2022  
 in accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act. For the five highest remunerated executive officers   
 during the reporting year ended 30 June 2021 refer to Western Power’s 2021 Annual Report.

Name Position (as at 30 June 2022) 2021/22

S Barbaro Interim Chief Executive Officer  
(from 19/03/2022 until permanent appointment in Aug-22^) 
(was Executive Manager Asset Operations until 18/03/2022)

*

T Brooker Executive Manager Business and Customer Service *

M Cheney Chief Technology Officer

M Chew General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance 
and Assurance

Z Christmas Acting Executive Manager Asset Operations  
(from 19/03/2022)

J Hall Chief Financial Officer

G Landsborough Executive Manager Asset Management *

B Stanton Acting Executive Manager Growth (from 14/02/2022)

E Kalajzic Chief Executive Officer (until 18/03/2022) *

P Kerr Executive Manager Growth (until 04/03/2022) *

Executive officers

The remuneration and other terms of employment for Western Power’s executive officers are 
formalised in ongoing employment agreements.

In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act, details of the five highest remunerated 
officers (being executive officers of Western Power) during the reporting years presented,  
are below.

Total  
Remuneration 
band

Number of  
executive  

officers
Salary  

and fees^

Non- 
monetary  
benefits^

Other  
long-term  
benefits^

Post- 
employment  

superannuation 
benefits^

Termination  
benefits^ Total^

21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21 21/22 20/21

$’000 # # $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$401-$450 2 3 381 254 5 6 9 6 24 16 – 1301 419 412

$451-$500 2 1 398 414 2 10 6 10 20 22 501 – 476 456

$501-$550 1 – 144 – – – – – 17 – 3801 – 541 –

$551-$600 – 1 – 528 – – – 12 – 22 – – – 562

^ Where there is more than one executive officer in a remuneration band the average remuneration is shown
1 Termination benefits include accrued annual and long service leave entitlements, and are subject to taxation  
 deductions required by law

For the total remuneration to Western Power’s directors and executive officers (where key 
management personnel) refer to note 26(b) ‘related party transactions’ in the financial 
statements of this financial report.
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Corporate governance disclosures
Corporate governance at Western Power

The Board of Western Power is committed to a high level of corporate governance and  
fostering a culture that values safety, ethical behaviour, integrity, diversity and respect.

Western Power’s corporate governance disclosures are published on the Western Power 
website at: 

westernpower.com.au/about/governance/

Directors’ report – confirmation

This directors’ report is authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors 
on 29 August 2022.

Signed on: 29 August 2022

C Beckett AO
Board Chair

G Martin
Deputy Board Chair
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Profit or loss
Income

Revenue from rendering of services
Other income

 
4 
4

 
1,927 

2

 
1,867 

1

Total income 1,929 1,868

Expenses
Materials and services
Employee related expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

 
 
5 
5 
5

 
(266) 
(223) 
(440) 
(214)

 
(242) 
(217) 

(402) 
(215)

Total expenses (1,143) (1,076)

Net finance costs

Profit before income tax equivalent expense
Income tax equivalent expense

6
 
 
7

(220)
 

566 
(166)

(233)
 

559 
(168)

Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 400 391

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be re-classified to profit or loss:

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss
Tax equivalent on cash flow hedges

Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss:
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss
Tax equivalent on cash flow hedges

24

24

80
11

(27)

(1)
–

35
11

(14)

1
-

Total other comprehensive income for the  
reporting year, net of tax equivalent

63 33

Total comprehensive income for the reporting  
year, net of tax equivalent

463 424
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Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables 
Inventories 
Derivative financial instruments 
Current tax equivalent assets

9
10
11
21

30
355
109

6
7

50
316
90
–
3

Total current assets 507 459

Non-current assets
Derivative financial instruments
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets

 
21 
12 
12 
13

 
24 

11,977 
179 

21

 
1 

11,550 
191 
20

Total non-current assets 12,201 11,762

Total assets 12,708 12,221

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings 
Lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions 
Deferred income

14
19
20
21
15
16

156
30

8
–

100
179

146
10
8

14
97
113

Total current liabilities 473 388

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities
Provisions 
Deferred income

19
20
21
17
15
16

7,436
13
–

1,152
12

35

7,710
12

36
1,048

16
64

Total non-current liabilities 8,648 8,886

Total liabilities 9,121 9,274

Net assets 3,587 2,947

Equity
Contributed equity
Hedging reserve
Retained earnings

 
23 
24 
24

 
1,865 
(23) 
1,745

 
1,688 
(86) 
1,345

Total equity 3,587 2,947

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note

Contributed 
equity 

$M

Hedging 
reserve 

$M

Retained 
earnings 

$M

Total  
equity 

$M

At 1 July 2021

Comprehensive income
Profit, net of tax equivalent
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax equivalent

24

1,688

–
–

(86)

–
63

1,345

400
–

2,947

400
63

Other comprehensive income, 
net of tax equivalent

– 63 400 463

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Contributions of equity
Dividends provided for or paid

23
25

177
–

–
–

–
–

177
–

Total transactions with owners 177 – – 177

At 30 June 2022 1,865 (23) 1,745 3,587

At 1 July 2020

Comprehensive income
Profit, net of tax equivalent
Other comprehensive income, 
net of tax equivalent

24

1,555

–
–

(119)

–
33

1,254

391
–

2,690

391
33

Other comprehensive income,  
net of tax equivalent

– 33 391 424

Transactions with owners in their  
capacity as owners

Contributions of equity
Dividends provided for or paid

23
25

133
–

–
–

–
(300)

133
(300)

Total transactions with owners 133 – (300) (167)

At 30 June 2021 1,688 (86) 1,345 2,947
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The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and 
services tax)
Capital contributions from developers and customers 
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of 
goods and services tax) 
Contributions to tariff equalisation fund 
Other income
Income tax equivalents paid

1,888

166
(722)

(187)
6

(93)

1,810

125
(646)

(185)
1

(109)

Net cash inflows from operating activities 9 1,058 996

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment, 
and intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(793)

18

(746)

11

Net cash outflows from investing activities (775) (735)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Lease principal paid 
Net finance costs paid 
Proceeds from contributed equity
Distributions to equity holder

575
(816)

(11)
(228)

177
–

984
(809)

(10)
(237)

133
(300)

Net cash outflows from financing activities (303) (239)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the  
reporting year

(20)
50

22
28

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting year 9 30 50

Notes to the financial statements

Section 1: Basis of preparation

1 Reporting entity
 Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) is incorporated  
 under the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act) and domiciled in Australia.  
 The registered office and principal place of business is 363 Wellington Street, Perth,   
 Western Australia 6000.
 Western Power is primarily involved in the building, maintenance and operation of the  
 electricity network throughout the majority of southern Western Australia.
 These financial statements cover Western Power as an individual entity and were  
 authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 29 August 2022.  
 The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial report.

2 Basis of accounting
 These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been  
 prepared in accordance with Australian accounting standards, other authoritative  
 pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) (including  
 Australian interpretations) and Schedule 4 of the Act. On operation of the Act, Schedule 4  
 was aligned and cross referenced to the relevant sections of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).
 Western Power has been classified as a not-for-profit entity for the purpose of applying  
 accounting standards, and accordingly applies the not-for-profit elections available in   
 the Australian accounting standards (where applicable).

 (a) New accounting standards and interpretations adopted
  Western Power has applied the below for the first time in the reporting year  
  commencing 1 July 2021:
  • IFRIC final agenda decision ‘Configuration or customisation costs in a cloud  
   computing arrangement’ 
   The above final agenda decision issued in April 2021 by the International Financial  
   Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), discusses whether configuration or   
   customisation expenditure relating to cloud computing arrangements is able to   
   be recognised as an intangible asset and if not, over what time period the  
   expenditure is expensed.
  Application of the above decision has resulted in a clarification of Western Power’s   
  ‘intangible assets’ accounting policy and affected note disclosures only (refer to  
  note 12(b)(i)). There has been no impact to the comparative amounts recognised   
  or adjustments against 1 July 2021 opening retained earnings.

In this section
This section presents the significant accounting policies adopted by Western Power  
in the preparation of these financial statements. Where an accounting policy is specific  
to one note, the policy is described in the note to which it relates. All principal policies  
have been consistently applied to the reporting years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

2 Basis of accounting (continued) 

 (b) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted
  There are no accounting standards or amendments effective after the 30 June 2022  
  reporting year that have been identified as potentially having a material impact on  
  Western Power in the reporting year of initial application.

 (c) Accrual accounting and historical cost convention
  These financial statements are prepared:
  • on the accrual accounting basis except for cash flow information prepared on the  
   cash accounting basis; and
  • in accordance with the historical cost convention except for:
   > derivative financial instruments measured at fair value; and
   > certain employee benefit liabilities measured at present value, less the fair  
    value of any defined benefit plan assets.

 (d) Comparatives
  Comparative amounts are for the previous reporting year from 1 July 2020 to 30  
  June 2021. 
  Where appropriate, comparative amounts are re-presented and re-classified to  
  ensure comparability with the current reporting year. In 2021/22, there has been no   
  re-statement to comparative amounts.

 (e) Going concern
  These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis – being  
  Western Power has reasonable grounds to believe it is able to pay its debts as and   
  when they become due and payable. This is considering:
  • Western Power’s surplus working capital as at 30 June 2022 (refer to note 18(d)(i));
  • the unused portion of Western Power’s available borrowing facility agreement   
   as at 30 June 2022 (refer to note 18(d)(ii)); and
  • Western Power’s forecast 2022/23 net profit and positive operating cash flows   
   in the 2022/23 Western Australian State Budget handed down in May 2022.
  COVID-19 pandemic 
  In making this assessment, consideration continues to be given to the potential  
  impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Western Power’s operating results.
  The ongoing indications remain that demand for, and receipts from network tariff   
  services, being the most sizable revenue source for Western Power have not been   
  materially impacted.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

2 Basis of accounting (continued)
 (f) Foreign currency translation
  Presentation and functional currency:
  These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, being the functional  
  currency of Western Power. All financial information presented in Australian dollars   
  has been rounded off to the nearest million ($M), unless otherwise stated.
  Transactions and balances:
  Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of Western Power  
  are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates at the date of the  
  transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are  
  denominated in foreign currencies are translated at closing exchange rates. 
  Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency  
  are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.  
  Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated   
  using the exchange rates at the dates the fair values were determined. 
  All foreign currency translation differences are recognised on a net basis in ‘other   
  expenses’ in profit or loss, except: 
  • when deferred in equity for translation differences of qualifying cash flow  
   hedges, to the extent the hedge is effective; and 
  • when the translation differences deferred to equity for qualifying cash flow hedges  
   are transferred to the carrying value of non-financial assets.
 (g) Goods and services tax (GST)
  Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated  
  GST, except when the GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority.  
  In this case, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or  
  as part of the expense.
  Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable  
  or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation  
  authority is included in other receivables or payables in the statement of financial   
  position. 
  Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows  
  arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable  
  to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian accounting  
 standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that  
 affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of income,  
 expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 Estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are   
 based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events  
 that may have a financial impact on Western Power and that are believed to be  
 reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised  
 in the reporting year in which the estimate is revised and any future reporting years affected.
 The areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements,  
 or a higher degree of judgement or complexity is involved, are below and described in   
 more detail in the related notes:

Critical accounting estimates and judgements Note

Unbilled network tariff revenue
Impaired trade receivables
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of non-financial assets
Present value of lease liabilities
Present value of employee benefit liabilities
Fair values of derivative financial instruments

4(c) and 10(c)
10(d) and 18(c)(i)

12(g)
12(h) and 13(f)

13(e) and 20(d)
15(c)

22(b)

In this section
This section presents details of Western Power’s profit results and performance by  
reference to the services rendered and operating expenses incurred.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented

4 Income
 (a) Accounting policy
  (i) Revenue
    Western Power recognises revenue when the performance obligation to which  
    it relates is satisfied. This is either at the point the service is provided – being  
    when control of the service is transferred to the customer, or over time where  
    control of the service is progressively transferred to the customer. It is  
    measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, being  
    the invoiced amount including interest on overdue amounts, net of the amount  
    of goods and services tax. Revenue also includes an estimate for the value of  
    unbilled network tariff services.
    Network services revenue
    Regulated tariff services
    Western Power primarily receives revenue from the rendering of network tariff  
    services. These services largely relate to the transmission and distribution of  
    electricity and are regulated by the Western Australian Economic Regulation  
    Authority (ERA) via an access arrangement agreement.
    Where Western Power progressively transfers control of these services to the  
    customer – being for on-going access to the network, the revenue is 
    recognised over time. All other network tariff revenue is recognised when the  
    service is provided to the customer – being at the point the network is used.  
    The consideration invoiced for network tariff services is based on observable  
    stand-alone prices, being mostly fixed access and usage tariffs approved by  
    the ERA and published in Western Power’s annual price list.
    For network access revenue recognised over time, the output method is used,  
    with revenue measured at the amount Western Power is entitled to invoice  
    the customer. This is because the invoiced amount charged at fixed daily  
    access tariffs, is deemed to correspond directly with the value to the customer  
    of Western Power’s performance obligation completed to date.
    As at each reporting date, network tariff revenue and trade receivables include  
    amounts attributable to ‘unbilled network tariff revenue’. Unbilled network tariff  
    revenue is an estimate of electricity transported to customers not yet invoiced  
    at the reporting date. It comprises read and unread (for periodical readings)  
    metered services, with the latter estimated based on projected revenue  
    consumption at observable stand-alone prices (fixed tariffs). 

 In relation to the COVID-19 pandemic, best estimates and judgements continue to be   
 assessed and applied in the preparation of Western Power’s financial statements, with   
 no evidence of a material impact on the financial performance or financial position in   
 the reporting periods presented (refer to notes 2(e) and 18(c)(i)).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

4 Income (continued)
 (a) Accounting policy (continued)
  (i) Revenue (continued)
    Network services revenue (continued)
    Other services (regulated and unregulated)
    Western Power also receives revenue from the rendering of other network  
    services, including:
    • Regulated non-standard access services where the customer is willing to  
     accept different conditions to the standard access contract and service  
     standard benchmark. The tariffs for these services are negotiated between  
     Western Power and the individual customers but must be set with regard to  
     the regulated network tariffs.
    • Regulated services that can only be offered by Western Power but which are  
     not core to the transmission and distribution of electricity. Where these are  
     commonly requested services, the fees and charges are set in-line with a  
     charging criteria and published on Western Power’s web-site. For other  
     complex or non-standard services, Western Power negotiates commercially  
     with the individual customers.
    • Unregulated services contestable by other suppliers including the sales  
     of materials. The fees and charges for these services are in-line with the 
     methodology disclosed above for ‘other regulated services’. 
    The revenue for other network services is recognised when the service  
    is provided to the customer. The consideration invoiced for these services is  
    based on observable stand-alone prices, being fixed at published or  
    contracted fees and charges.

    Developer and customer contributions
    Western Power receives developer and customer contributions toward the  
    extension or augmentation of electricity infrastructure to facilitate network  
    connection. Contributions are mostly in the form of cash or gifted network  
    assets.
    Cash contributions are charged using the methodology included in Western  
    Power’s published ‘contributions policy’ approved by the ERA as part of the  
    access arrangement agreement. They are initially deferred and subsequently  
    recognised as revenue at the point the developers or customers are connected  
    to the network. This is in satisfaction of the performance obligation of the  
    underlying connection contract. 
    Gifted network assets are recognised as revenue at the point the assets are  
    energised being in satisfaction of the performance obligation to connect the  
    developer or customer to the network, and are measured at their fair value. 
    The network assets resulting from contributions received or gifted are  
    recognised as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over their 
    estimated useful life. 
  (ii)  Other income
    Western Power receives other income from the provision of services incidental  
    to the core activities of the business. Other income is recognised when the  
    service is provided.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

4 Income (continued)
 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
  (i) Revenue from rendering of services

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Network services revenue:

Transmission tariff services
Distribution tariff services 
Other services

4(c)
4(c)

555
1,121
99

424
1,157

91

Developer and customer contributions
1,775

152
1,672

195

1,927 1,867

(ii)   Other income

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Rent
Other

1
1

1
–

2 1

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled network tariff revenue
  For the year ended 30 June 2022, transmission and distribution network tariff  
  revenue included $251 million for unbilled services (30 June 2021: $192 million).  
  The revenue from these services is measured using a projection model applying  
  complex estimation methodologies and algorithms based on assumptions and  
  inputs such as customer billing profiles, historical and budget data, and seasonal,  
  growth and emerging technology factors. This is consistent with the revenue  
  recognition methodology adopted in previous reporting years (refer to note 4(a)  
  for further details).
  Western Power considers it highly probable a significant reversal of this estimate  
  will not be required. This is due to on-going quantitative and qualitative processes  
  in place to support robust and sound measurement, including regular  
  reasonableness and deviation monitoring, plus periodical independent reviews  
  of the revenue projection model.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

5 Expenses
 (a) Employee related expenses

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits
Superannuation

(184)
(39)

(179)
(38)

(223) (217)

(b)  Depreciation and amortisation expense

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Depreciation expense – property, plant  
and equipment:

Buildings
Plant and equipment
Capitalised depreciation 5(b)(i)

(6)
(380)

14

(6)
(361)

16

Amortisation expense – intangible assets:
Computer software
Intellectual property

(372)

(50)
(7)

(351)

(37)
(4)

Depreciation expense – right-of-use assets:
Fleet
Other equipment

(57)

(9)
(2)

(41)

(8)
(2)

(11) (10)

(440) (402)

  (i) Capitalised depreciation
    Capitalised depreciation represents charges for fleet assets used in the  
    course of construction.

Refer to notes 12(a)(ii), 12(b)(ii) and 13(a)(ii) for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods 
and estimated useful lives applied.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

5 Expenses (continued)
 (c) Other expenses
  (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Tariff equalisation contribution
Insurance 
Net loss on disposal of property, plant  
and equipment 
Impairment of trade receivables
Other

29(b)

18(c)(i)

(187)
(13)
(12)

(1)
(1)

(185)
(12)
(14)

(3)
(1)

(214) (215)

Refer to note 27 for details on the remuneration of auditors.

  (ii) Accounting policy: lease costs

    The below expenses are recognised as ‘lease costs’ in profit or loss on a  
    straight-line basis over the period of the lease:

    • expenses relating to short-term leases;

    • expenses relating to leases of low-value assets; and

    • other expenses not captured as lease liabilities under AASB 16 Leases –  
     including variable and termination lease payments. 

    Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.  
    Low-value leases are for assets individually valued at less than $5,000. 

    During the year ended 30 June 2022, lease costs were $0.248 million  
    (30 June 2021: $0.284 million).

6 Net finance costs
 (a) Accounting policy
  Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested.
  Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Finance costs directly  
  attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets  
  (being assets that take in excess of 12 months to be ready for their intended use,  
  and whose estimated cost is more than $5 million) are capitalised to form part of  
  the cost of that asset. All other finance costs are expensed in the reporting years  
  in which they are incurred. ‘Net finance costs paid’ in the statement of cash flows  
  is prior to the effect of capitalisation.

Refer to note 26(b) for details of total compensation to Western Power’s key management personnel.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

6 Net finance costs (continued)
 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Finance income:

Interest

Finance costs: 
Domestic currency loans not at fair value 
through profit or loss 
Fair value loss on cash flow hedges 
Interest rate swaps 
Finance lease interest 
Capitalised finance costs 6(b)(i)

–

(187)

(11)
(28)

–
6

–

(194)

(11)
(30)

(1)
3

(220) (233)

Net finance costs (220) (233)

  (i) Capitalised finance costs
    For the year ended 30 June 2022, the weighted average interest rate used to  
    capitalise finance costs was 3.1 per cent (30 June 2021: 3.1 per cent).

7 Income tax equivalent expense
 (a) Accounting policy
  National taxation equivalent regime
  Western Power operates under the National Taxation Equivalent Regime (NTER).  
  While income tax equivalent payments under this scheme are remitted to the  
  Western Australian State Government, Western Power’s tax equivalent is subject to  
  Australian Taxation Office (ATO) administration. The calculation of the liability in  
  respect of these taxes is governed by the Income Tax Administration Acts and the  
  NTER guidelines as agreed by the State Government.
  Income tax equivalent expense
  The income tax equivalent expense for a reporting year comprises current and  
  deferred tax equivalents. It is calculated on income assessable and expenses  
  deductible for tax – irrespective of when the assessment or deduction arises, and  
  includes adjustments for permanent and temporary differences, that is: 
  • Permanent differences recognised for transactions that will not be included in  
   taxable income or loss – although recognised in accounting profit or loss 
  • Temporary differences recognised for transactions included in taxable income  
   or loss – but at a different point in time to recognition in accounting profit or loss
  Income tax equivalent expense is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent  
  it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,  
  in which case the tax equivalent expense is too recognised in other comprehensive  
  income or directly in equity.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

7 Income tax equivalent expense (continued)
 (a) Accounting policy (continued)
  Current tax equivalent 
  Current tax equivalent is the expected tax equivalent payable or receivable on the  
  taxable income or loss for the reporting year, using tax rates enacted or 
  substantially enacted as at the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax  
  equivalent in respect of previous years.
  Deferred tax equivalent 
  Deferred tax equivalent is provided using the liability method on temporary  
  differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for  
  accounting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax  
  equivalent is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied when the  
  asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted  
  or substantially enacted as at the reporting date.
  A deferred tax equivalent asset is recognised only to the extent it is probable future  
  taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax  
  equivalent assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and are reduced  
  to the extent it is no longer probable the related tax equivalent benefit will be  
  realised. Unrecognised deferred tax equivalent assets are reassessed at each  
  reporting date and are recognised to the extent it has become probable future  
  taxable profits will allow the deferred tax equivalent asset to be recovered.
  Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally  
  enforceable right to offset current tax equivalent assets and liabilities, and when  
  the deferred tax equivalent balances relate to the same taxation authority. 
 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2021/22 2020/21
Current

$M
Deferred

$M
Total

$M
Current

$M
Deferred

$M
Total

$M

Income tax equivalent  
expense  
Adjustment for income tax 
equivalent of previous years

(82)

(7)

(85)

8

(167)

1

(84)

–

(84)

–

(168)

–

(89) (77) (166) (84) (84) (168)

As at 30 June 2022, Western Power’s current tax equivalent was $82 million  
(30 June 2021: $84 million).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

7 Income tax equivalent expense (continued)
 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (continued)

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Income tax equivalent expense is attributable to:
Profit for the reporting year

Current tax equivalents included in income tax equivalent 
expense 
Deferred tax equivalents included in income tax equivalent 
expense comprises:

Movement in deferred tax equivalent assets (note 17(c))
Movement in deferred tax equivalent liabilities (note 17(d))

(166)

(89)

(2)
(75)

(168)

(84)

4
(88)

(166) (168)

(c)   Reconciliation of profit to income tax equivalent expense

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 566 559

Income tax equivalent expense at the Australian tax rate of 
30 per cent (30 June 2021: 30 per cent)
Income tax equivalent effect of:

Other allowable deductions 
Net non deductible expenses and assessable income 
Net research and development expenses and incentives

(170)

3
–
–

(168)

2
(1)
(1)

Current income tax equivalent expense 
Adjustment for current tax equivalent of previous years
Adjustment for deferred tax equivalent of previous years

(167)
(7)

8

(168)
–
–

Total income tax equivalent expense (166) (168)

(d)  Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss

(24)
(3)

–

(11)
(3)

–

(27) (14)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities

8 Financial assets and financial liabilities
 Western Power classifies and subsequently measures all financial assets and financial  
 liabilities at amortised cost with the exception of derivative financial instruments,  
 measured at fair value. 
 Financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost when the following  
 conditions are met:
 • the financial asset is held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows; and
 • the contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise, on specified dates, to cash  
  flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount  
  outstanding.
 The carrying amounts of Western Power’s financial assets and financial liabilities,  
 together with their fair values as at the reporting dates presented, are below. These financial  
 assets and financial liabilities are held to support the operations of the business.

In this section
This section identifies the assets used to generate Western Power’s operating profit and 
the liabilities incurred as a result. (Refer to section 4 for the liabilities relating to Western 
Power’s financing activities).

Note

2021/22 2020/21
Carrying 
amount

$M

Fair  
value

$M

Carrying 
amount

$M

Fair  
value

$M

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables  
(excluding prepayments) 
Derivative financial instruments 
(used for hedging)

9
10

21

30
337

30

30
337

30

50
304

1

50
304

1

Total financial assets 397 397 355 355

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings: 

Domestic working capital facility
Domestic currency loans 
Accrued interest

14 
19

156 
7,466

30
7,389

47

156 
7,190

30
7,113

47

146 
7,720

10
7,661

49

146 
8,030

10
7,971

49
Lease liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 
(used for hedging)

20
21

21
–

21
–

20
50

20
50

Total financial liabilities 7,643 7,367 7,936 8,246

Details on the accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and impairment of  
the above financial assets and financial liabilities are set out in the relevant notes indicated 
above. The methods used to determine fair value are indicated on the following page.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

8 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
 (a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a  
  liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

  (i) Trade and other receivables and payables

    The fair value of receivables and payables with a remaining life of less than  
    one year is deemed to be the notional amount due to their short-term nature.  
    The fair value of all other receivables and payables is estimated at the present  
    value of future cash flows – discounted using the current market rates of  
    interest available for similar receivables and payables, unless the effect of  
    discounting would be immaterial.

  (ii) Derivative financial instruments

    The fair value of derivative financial instruments in active markets is based on  
    quoted market prices at the end of the reporting year. For derivatives not traded  
    in active markets the valuation techniques in note 22(b) are used. These  
    techniques result in fair values classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy  
    (as defined in note 22(a)) because either the inputs are based on observable  
    market data or the valuation is independently calculated by the provider of  
    the instrument.

  (iii) Lease liabilities

    The fair value of lease liabilities is measured at the present value of outstanding  
    payments – discounted using the interest rates implicit in the leases, or where  
    the rates are not readily determined, at incremental borrowing rates provided  
    by the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC), being the provider of  
    Western Power’s borrowings.

  (iv) Domestic currency loans

    The fair value of domestic currency loans is calculated by discounting the  
    expected future principal and interest cash flows using the interest rates below.  
    This is except for loans linked to the consumer price index (CPI), which are  
    independently fair valued by the WATC, the provider of these instruments.

2021/22 2020/21

WATC yield curve
Bank bill swap (BBSW) reference rate
Australian dollar (AUD) interest rate swap curve

1.0% – 4.7%
1.9%

3.1% – 4.1%

0.2% – 2.9%
0.1%

0.1% – 1.6%

The fair value of domestic currency loans is classified as level 2 in the fair value 
hierarchy (as defined in note 22(a)) because either the inputs are based on  
observable market data or the valuation is independently calculated by the  
provider of the borrowings.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

8 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
 (b) Recognised fair value measurements
  Refer to note 22 for details of the assets and liabilities recognised and measured  
  at fair value in the financial statements as at the reporting dates presented.

9 Cash and cash equivalents
 (a) Accounting policy
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, deposits held at call with  
  financial institutions and other short-term deposits that have an original maturity of  
  three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. As at 30  
  June 2022, Western Power did not have any short-term deposits (30 June 2021: nil).
  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist  
  of cash and deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. As at  
  30 June 2022, Western Power did not have a bank overdraft (30 June 2021: nil).
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Current
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M

Cash at bank 30 50

30 50

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

(c)   Reconciliation of profit to net cash inflows from operating activities

Note
2021/22

$M
2020/21

$M
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 
Non-cash items: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Written down value on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 
Non-cash capital contributions 

Items classified as investing and financing activities:
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment
Net finance costs 

Movements in operating assets and liabilities:
Movement in trade and other receivables 
Movement in inventories 
Movement in trade and other payables 
Movement in provisions 
Movement in deferred income 
Movement in tax equivalent liabilities

5(b)

9(d)

6(b)

400

440
30

(41)

(18)

220

(39)
(19)
(22)

(3)
37
73

391

402
25

(50)

(11)

233

(57)
(7)

(16)
12
15

59

Net cash inflows from operating activities 1,058 996
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

9 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
 (d) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Gifted network assets
Additions to right-of-use assets

12(f)(i)
13(d)

41
12

50
5

(e) Changes in borrowing liabilities arising from financing activities 
  Movements in borrowings during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
At 1 July
Cash movements:

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Non-cash movements 9(e)(i)

7,720

575
(816)

(13)

7,543

984
(809)

2

At 30 June 7,466 7,720

  (i) Non-cash movements
    Non-cash movements include quarterly borrowing accretions not paid until  
    maturity, the fair value of cash flow hedges re-classified to profit or loss over  
    the terms of the borrowings and movements in accrued interest.

10 Trade and other receivables
 (a) Accounting policy
  Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, being the value  
  of the invoice sent to the customer, and subsequently measured at amortised cost  
  less an allowance for impairment. Trade receivables also include an estimate for  
  the value of unbilled network tariff revenue. 
  Trade and other receivables are classified as current assets unless collection is not  
  expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date. Where payments are  
  due after one year, they are measured at their net present value to reflect the  
  economic cost of the delayed payment.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

10 Trade and other receivables (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  Impairment

  An impairment allowance is recognised for the expected credit losses (ECLs) on  
  trade receivables. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash  
  flows due in accordance with the contract and all cash flows expected to be  
  received – discounted at the original effective interest rate, unless the effect of  
  discounting would be immaterial.

  Western Power applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs, that is, an  
  impairment allowance is recognised for credit losses expected to result from all  
  possible default events over the lifetime of the trade receivable. This is estimated  
  using a provision matrix based on Western Power’s historical credit loss experience,  
  adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the receivables and economic  
  environment.

  Amounts impaired are recognised in profit or loss. They are generally written off  
  when there is no expectation of recovery. Indicators of this include failure of a  
  debtor to engage in a repayment plan and/or if past due for a significant period.  
  Any subsequent recoveries of amounts written off are credited to profit or loss.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers for services provided  
  or goods sold in the ordinary course of business. They are usually settled on 14 or  
  30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed otherwise. Other receivables  
  generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the  
  business.

Current Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

10(c)
10(d)

341
(4)

298
(5)

Prepayments
Other receivables

337
18
–

293
12
11

Total trade and other receivables 355 316

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled trade receivables

  As at 30 June 2022, trade receivables included unbilled network tariff revenue of  
  $251 million (30 June 2021: $192 million). Refer to note 4(c) for further details on the  
  estimation of this amount.
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Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

10 Trade and other receivables (continued)

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables
  The allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions about  
  risk of default and expected loss rates. Western Power uses judgement in making  
  these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based  
  on past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at  
  the end of each reporting date.
  Refer to notes 18(c)(i) and 18(c)(ii) respectively for details of Western Power’s  
  ‘impaired’ and ‘past due but not impaired’ trade receivables as at the reporting  
  dates presented, including key assumptions and inputs.

11 Inventories

 (a) Accounting policy
  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of  
  inventories is based on the weighted average cost principle, and includes  
  expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing  
  location and condition. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains  
  or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of  
  inventories. 
  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,  
  less the estimated completion and selling costs.
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position
  Inventories consist of materials required for the maintenance and operation of  
  the network, as well as for general construction works.

Current
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Raw materials and stores 109 90

109 90

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
  Inventories expensed to profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2022 were  
  $44 million (30 June 2021: $35 million). 
  As at 30 June 2022, the write down of inventory to net realisable value was  
  $0.347 million (30 June 2021: $0.404 million).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment

  (i) Cost
    Property, plant and equipment represents the capital works and plant required  
    for the operation of the business, and is recognised at historical cost less  
    accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
    Historical cost is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of  
    acquisition or construction, and includes all costs of purchase, delivery,  
    installation and borrowing costs (where a qualifying asset), as well as any  
    other expenditure directly attributable to bringing the acquired or  
    self-constructed asset to a working condition for its intended use. Cost may  
    also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow  
    hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. 
    Gifted network assets are recognised at fair value at the point the assets  
    are energised.
    Subsequent costs are included in property, plant and equipment only when  
    it is probable the item associated with the cost will generate future economic  
    benefits and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amounts of items  
    replaced are derecognised. 
    All other repairs and maintenance, plus minor capital acquisitions less than  
    $5,000, are expensed to profit or loss in the reporting years in which they 
    are incurred.
  (ii) Depreciation
    In order to recognise the loss of service potential of property, plant and  
    equipment, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over  
    the estimated useful lives below, making allowances where appropriate for  
    residual values.

Class of property, plant and equipment
Estimated useful life 

(years)
Buildings
Plant and equipment

40
4-50

Property, plant and equipment received on disaggregation of Western  
Power Corporation is depreciated over the estimated residual useful lives.  
No depreciation is provided on freehold land, easements and assets while  
under construction. 
The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation methods of  
property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually, and adjusted  
prospectively if appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any  
changes recognised as a change in accounting estimate.
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Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment (continued)

  (iii) Rehabilitation costs

    Upon recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of the  
    item includes the present value of the anticipated costs of rehabilitating 
    the site on which it is located. 

  (iv) Derecognition

    An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or  
    when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued  
    use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset  
    are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are  
    recognised in profit or loss. 

 (b) Accounting policy: intangible assets

  (i) Cost

    Intangible assets represent identifiable capitalised computer software and  
    intellectual property, and are recognised at historical cost less accumulated 
    amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent costs are  
    included in intangible assets only when it is probable the item associated 
    with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be  
    measured reliably. 

    Internally generated intangible assets are recognised only if:

    • an asset is created that can be identified;

    • it is probable the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and

    • the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

    Development cost includes materials and labour, as well as any other  
    expenditure directly attributable to bringing the intangible asset to a working 
    condition for its intended use. Where no internally generated intangible asset  
    can be recognised the development cost is expensed to profit or loss. 

    All research costs are expensed to profit or loss.

    Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) arrangements

    A SaaS arrangement is a service contract that provides Western Power the  
    right to access application software of a cloud provider over a contracted  
    period. Costs incurred to configure or customise this software, as well as  
    ongoing fees for the right to access are expensed to profit or loss when the  
    service is provided.

    Costs incurred to develop software code that enhances or modifies, or creates  
    additional capability to Western Power’s existing on-premise systems are  
    capitalised as computer software only when the recognition criteria for an  
    intangible asset are met.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (b) Accounting policy: intangible assets (continued)

  (ii) Amortisation

    In order to recognise the loss of service potential of intangible assets,  
    amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
    useful lives below, making allowances where appropriate for residual values.

Class of intangible assets
Estimated useful life 

(years)
Computer software
Intellectual property

2.5-10
3-25

    Intangible assets received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation  
    are amortised over their estimated residual useful lives. 

    The residual values, estimated useful lives and amortisation methods of  
    intangible assets are reviewed annually, and adjusted prospectively if  
    appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised  
    as a change in accounting estimate. 

  (iii) Derecognition

    An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future  
    economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
    Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are determined by  
    comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

 (c) Impairment of non-financial assets

  At each reporting date, Western Power considers any indicators of impairment  
  to non-financial assets, that is, events or changes in circumstances that indicate  
  the carrying value may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised  
  for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable  
  amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s or groups of assets  
  (being cash generating units (CGU)) value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.  
  Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does  
  not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets  
  or groups of assets.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and, where material, are  
  disclosed separately. Any impairment losses recognised in previous years are  
  assessed at the end of each reporting date for any indications the loss has  
  decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a  
  change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment  
  loss is reversed only to the extent the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the  
  carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or  
  amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (d) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

(e)   Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Depreciation expense – property, plant and  
equipment (excluding capitalised depreciation)
Amortisation expense – intangible assets

5(b)

5(b)

(386)

(57)

(367)

(41)

Refer to notes 12(a)(ii) and 12(b)(ii) respectively for details of the depreciation and amortisation  
methods and estimated useful lives applied.

Freehold 
land  

$M
Buildings 

 $M

Plant and 
equipment 

$M

Works  
under  

construction 
$M

Total 
property, 

plant and 
equipment 

 $M

Computer 
software  

$M

Intellectual 
property  

$M

Total  
intangible 

assets 
$M

Cost
Accumulated  
depreciation 
and  
amortisation

108
–

230
(74)

14,876
(3,846)

683
–

15,897
(3,920)

552
(389)

45
(29)

597
(418)

Carrying 
amount at  
30 June 2022

108 156 11,030 683 11,977 163 16 179

Cost
Accumulated  
depreciation 
and  
amortisation

122
–

229
(69)

14,191
(3,470)

547
–

15,089
(3,539)

522
(340)

32
(23)

554
(363)

Carrying 
amount  
at 30 June 2021

122 160 10,721 547 11,550 182 9 191

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (f) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets  
  during the reporting years presented, are below:

Freehold 
land  

$M
Buildings 

 $M

Plant and 
equipment 

$M

Works  
under  

construction 
$M

Total 
property, 

plant and 
equipment 

 $M

Computer 
software  

$M

Intellectual 
property  

$M

Total 
intangible 

assets 
$M

Carrying  
amount at  
1 July 2021
Additions  
(note 12(f)(i))
Transfers to  
inventory
Transfers in/ 
(out)
Disposals
Depreciation  
and  
amortisation 
(note 12(e))

122

–

–

–

(14)
–

160

–

–

2

–
(6)

10,721

1

–

704

(16)
(380)

547

893

(6)

(751)

–
–

11,550

894

(6)

(45)

(30)
(386)

182

–

–

31

–
(50)

9

–

–

14

–
(7)

191

–

–

45

–
(57)

Carrying 
amount at  
30 June 2022

108 156 11,030 683 11,977 163 16 179

Carrying  
amount at  
1 July 2020
Additions  
(note 12(f)(i))
Transfers to  
inventory
Transfers in/ 
(out)
Disposals
Depreciation  
and  
amortisation 
(note 12(e))

123

–

–

1

(2)
–

139

–

–

29

(2)
(6)

10,345

4

–

754

(21)
(361)

605

798

(7)

(849)

–
–

11,212

802

(7)

(65)

(25)
(367)

162

–

–

57

–
(37)

5

–

–

8

–
(4)

167

–

–

65

–
(41)

Carrying 
amount at  
30 June 2021

122 160 10,721 547 11,550 182 9 191
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Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

12 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued) 

 (f) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets  
  during the reporting years presented (continued)

  (i) Additions to works under construction 

    Contributed assets

    Western Power recognises non-cash capital contributions in the form of gifted  
    network assets in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(a). For the  
    year ended 30 June 2022, the fair value of gifted network assets included in  
    additions was $41 million (30 June 2021: $50 million).

    Capitalised finance costs

    Western Power capitalises finance costs in accordance with the accounting  
    policy in note 6(a). For the year ended 30 June 2022, additions included  
    finance costs of $6 million attributable to assets in the course of construction  
    (30 June 2021: $3 million).

 (g) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: depreciation and amortisation

  Western Power reviews the depreciation and amortisation methods of property,  
  plant and equipment, and intangible assets respectively at least annually in  
  accordance with the accounting policies in notes 12(a)(ii) and 12(b)(ii). This involves  
  estimates and judgements associated with residual values and estimated useful  
  lives, taking into account such factors as commercial and technical obsolescence,  
  as well as normal wear and tear.

  As at 30 June 2022, Western Power did not recognise any changes in depreciation  
  and amortisation estimates (30 June 2021: nil).

 (h) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-financial  
  assets (including right-of-use assets)

  Western Power assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment,  
  intangible assets and right-of-use assets at least annually in accordance with the  
  accounting policy in note 12(c). This involves evaluating impairment indicators  
  specific to Western Power and/or the particular non-financial asset or CGU.  
  Indicators include significant changes in market, technological, economic, legal  
  and/or climate change-related environments; obsolescence or physical damage.

  There were no indicators of impairment to property, plant and equipment,  
  intangible assets and right-of-use assets as at 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021:  
  no indicators).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

13 Right-of-use assets

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Cost

    Right-of-use assets represent leased fleet and other equipment (including  
    properties and information technology) required for the operation of the 
    business. They are recognised at the commencement dates of the leases,  
    at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated  
    impairment losses, adjusted for lease liability re-measurements. 

    Historical cost is measured at the amount of the initial lease liability, plus any:

    • lease payments made at, or before the commencement date less any lease  
     incentives received;

    • initial direct costs; and

    • restoration costs including dismantling and removing the underlying asset. 

  (ii) Depreciation

    In order to recognise the loss of service potential, right-of-use assets are  
    depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s estimated 
    useful life and the lease term, per below:

Class of right-of-use assets Years

Fleet
Other equipment

2-7.5
5-40

    Where Western Power is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,  
    the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. 

  (iii) Impairment

    Refer to note 12(c) for details of Western Power’s ‘Impairment of non-financial  
    assets’ accounting policy.
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Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

13 Right-of-use assets (continued)
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Fleet 
$M

Other  
equipment  

$M

Total  
right-of-use 

assets  
$M

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

35
(21)

12
(5)

47
(26)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 14 7 21

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

28
(15)

10
(3)

38
(18)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 13 7 20

(c)   Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Depreciation 5(b) (11) (10)

 (d) Movements in each class of right-of-use assets during the reporting years  
  presented, are below:

Fleet 
$M

Other  
equipment  

$M

Total  
right-of-use 

assets  
$M

Carrying amount at 1 July 2021
Additions
Depreciation (note 13(c))

13
10

(9)

7
2

(2)

20
12

(11)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 14 7 21

Carrying amount at 1 July 2020
Additions
Depreciation (note 13(c))

17
4

(8)

8
1

(2)

25
5

(10)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 13 7 20

 (e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: present value of lease liabilities
  The historical cost of a right-of-use asset is largely determined by the initial  
  measurement of the lease liability. Refer to note 20(d) for further details on the  
  estimation of this measurement, being the present value of lease liabilities.
 (f) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-financial assets
  Refer to note 12(h) for details of Western Power’s critical accounting estimates and  
  judgements used to assess the impairment of right-of-use assets.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

14 Trade and other payables

 (a) Accounting policy

  Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently  
  measured at amortised cost. 

  Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not  
  due for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to  
  Western Power prior to the end of the reporting year which are unpaid – including  
  for employee wages and salaries. They are usually settled within 20 days of  
  recognition.

Current Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables
Contributory extension scheme 14(b)(i)

113
42

1

95
49

2
156 146

  (i) Contributory extension scheme

    Contributory extension scheme payables represent contributions received  
    from customers to extend specific electricity supplies. These non-interest  
    bearing deposits are refunded at the end of the contribution period unless  
    other customers connect to the extensions. By 2023, when the scheme finishes,  
    all scheme members will have had their contributions refunded.

15 Provisions

 (a) Accounting policy

  Provisions are recognised when:

  • Western Power has either a present legal or constructive obligation as a result  
   of past events;

  • it is probable an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

  • a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

  Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the  
  expenditure required to settle the obligation as at the reporting date. The discount rate  
  used to determine the present value reflects the market assessments of the time  
  value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Any movement in the provision  
  due to the unwinding of the discount rate – being for the passage of time, is recognised  
  as a finance cost.

Refer to note 13(a)(ii) for details of the depreciation method and estimated useful lives applied.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

15 Provisions (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued) 

  (i) Employee benefits

    Provisions for the below employee benefit liabilities are recognised as a result  
    of services rendered up to the reporting date. 

    Wages and salaries

    Liabilities arising in respect of employee benefits that are expected to be  
    settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their  
    nominal amount based on remuneration rates that are expected to be paid  
    when the liabilities are settled. The liability for wages and salaries is recognised  
    in ‘trade payables and accruals (current)’. The liability for all other short-term  
    employee benefits is recognised in the ‘provision for employee benefits –  
    other (current)’.

    Annual and long service leave

    The liabilities arising in respect of annual and long service leave are not  
    expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date. They are  
    recognised in the ‘provision for employee benefits (current and non-current)’,  
    and measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made  
    in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using  
    the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to factors including the  
    expected future wages and salaries levels (including related on-costs),  
    experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future  
    payments are discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates whose terms  
    most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. 

    Independent actuarial valuations are carried out at each reporting date.  
    Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in  
    actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 

    Leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial  
    position where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least  
    12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when actual settlement is  
    expected to occur.

    Retirement benefit obligations

    All employees of Western Power are entitled to benefits upon retirement,  
    disability or death from any number of superannuation plans, which may 
    include a defined contribution section, a defined benefit section, or both.  
    The liabilities for retirement benefit obligations are recognised in the ‘provision  
    for employee benefits – other’.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

15 Provisions (continued)
 (a) Accounting policy (continued) 
  (i) Employee benefits (continued)
    Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
    Defined contribution plans
    A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which  
    Western Power pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have  
    no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions to  
    defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the reporting  
    years in which the services are rendered by employees (refer to note 5(a)).
    Defined benefit plans
    A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit other than a defined  
    contribution plan. A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit  
    superannuation plans is recognised in the statement of financial position,  
    and is measured separately for each plan at the present value of the defined  
    benefit obligation in respect of services provided by employees up to the  
    reporting date, less the fair value of any plan assets at that date.
    The present value of defined benefit superannuation plans is based upon  
    expected future payments and is calculated using discounted cash flows  
    consistent with the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to  
    factors including the expected future wages and salaries level, experience 
    of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are  
    discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates whose terms most closely  
    match the terms of the related liabilities. An independent actuarial valuation  
    is carried out at each reporting date. 
    The annual net defined benefit interest expense and/or income is determined  
    by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation  
    at the beginning of the reporting year to the net defined benefit liability and/or  
    asset. It is recognised immediately along with all other defined benefit plan  
    expenses including past services costs, in ‘employee related expenses’ in  
    profit or loss.
    Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and  
    changes in actuarial assumptions (including changes in the bond rate) are 
    recognised in the reporting years in which they occur, directly in other  
    comprehensive income. They are included in ‘retained earnings’ in the  
    statements of changes in equity and financial position.
    Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations resulting from plan  
    amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as  
    past service costs.
  (ii) Rehabilitation costs
    A provision for site rehabilitation costs is recognised when: 
    • there is either a legal or constructive obligation to rehabilitate a site as  
     a result of a past event;
    • it is probable a rehabilitation expense will be incurred to settle the obligation; and
    • the obligation costs can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

15 Provisions (continued)
 (a) Accounting policy (continued) 
  (ii) Rehabilitation costs (continued)
    The amount of the provision, being the estimated present value of the  
    future rehabilitation costs, is capitalised into the cost of the related property,  
    plant and equipment, and depreciated over the estimated useful life. Any  
    subsequent changes in the estimated future costs, useful lives and/or the  
    discount rates are added to or deducted from the cost of the related property,  
    plant and equipment.
    Rehabilitation costs that relate to an existing condition caused by past  
    operations, but that do not have a future economic benefit are expensed  
    to profit or loss in the reporting years in which they are incurred.
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Note

2021/22 2020/21

Current
$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M
Current

$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M

Employee benefits:  
Annual leave 
Long service leave
Other

15(e)
15(e)

44
52

1

–
8
–

44
60

1

43
52

1

–
11
–

43
63

1

Rehabilitation costs
Environmental costs 15(b)(i)

97
–
3

8
4
–

105
4
3

96
1

–

11
3
2

107
4
2

100 12 112 97 16 113

  (i) Environmental costs
    Environmental provisions relate to estimated costs on essential safety  
    expenditure.
 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments: present value of employee benefits
  The present value of employee benefits, including annual and long service leave  
  and retirement benefit obligations, is determined using actuarial valuations.  
  An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from  
  actual results including the discount rate, future wages and salaries levels  
  (including related on-costs), employee departures and settlement dates. 
  All actuarial assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date with any  
  remeasurement gains or losses recognised in accordance with the accounting  
  policy in note 15(a).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

15 Provisions (continued)
 (d) Movements in provisions
  Movements in each class of provision during the reporting year presented,  
  other than employee benefits, are below:

Rehabilitation 
costs 

$M

Environmental 
costs  

$M
At 1 July 2021
Provided for in the reporting year

4
–

2
1

At 30 June 2022 4 3

 (e) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months
  The annual and long service leave benefits reported as current because Western  
  Power does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement, but that based on  
  past experience are not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months of  
  the reporting dates presented, are below:

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Current annual leave:
Annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months
Annual leave expected to be settled after 12 months

28
16

27
16

44 43
Current long service leave:

Long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months
Long service leave expected to be settled after 12 months

11
41

10
42

52 52
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

16 Deferred income
 (a) Accounting policy
  Contributions received in advance are deferred and subsequently recognised as  
  revenue at the point the developers or customers are connected to the network.  
  This is in satisfaction of the performance obligation of the underlying connection  
  contract. 
  Contributions are classified as current liabilities unless connection to the network  
  is not due for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position
  Deferred income largely relates to contributions received in advance from  
  developers and customers.

2021/22 2020/21

Current
$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M
Current

$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M

Deferred income 179 35 214 113 64 177

 (c) Movements in deferred income
  Movements in deferred income during the reporting years presented, are below:

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

At 1 July
Received in the reporting year
Earned in the reporting year

177
182

(145)

162
141

(126)
At 30 June 214 177

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

17 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities
 (a) Accounting policy
  Refer to note 7(a) for details of Western Power’s ‘deferred tax equivalent’  
  accounting policy.
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position
  The temporary differences attributable to deferred tax equivalent assets and  
  liabilities as at the reporting dates presented, are below:

Non-current

2021/22 2020/21

Deferred 
tax asset

$M

Deferred 
tax  

liability
$M

Net 
(liability 

less asset)
$M

Deferred 
tax asset

$M

Deferred 
tax  

liability
$M

Net 
(liability 

less asset)
$M

Property, plant and 
equipment (PPE), and 
intangible assets
Derivative financial  
instruments
Provisions for employee 
benefits
Other temporary  
differences

–

10

31

4

1,197

–

–

–

1,197

(10)

(31)

(4)

–

37

32

5

1,122

–

–

–

1,122

(37)

(32)

(5)

Total deferred tax  
equivalent
Set-off deferred tax 
equivalent assets  
pursuant to set-off  
provisions

45

(45)

1,197

(45)

1,152

–

74

(74)

1,122

(74)

1,048

–

Net deferred tax  
equivalent

– 1,152 1,152 – 1,048 1,048

Net deferred tax  
equivalent:

Expected to be realised
within 12 months
Expected to be 
realised after more
than 12 months

 

30 

15

 

– 

1,197

 

(30) 

1,182

 

36 

38

 

– 

1,122

 

(36) 

1,084

45 1,197 1,152 74 1,122 1,048
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Derivative 
financial  

instruments
$M

Provisions 
for  

employee 
benefits

$M

Other 
temporary 
differences

$M

Deferred 
tax  

equivalent 
assets

$M

At 1 July 2021
Charged to profit or loss 
Charged to other comprehensive income
Adjustment to income tax equivalent  
provided in previous years

37
–

(27)
–

32
(1)

–
–

5
(3)

–
2

74
(4)

(27)
2

At 30 June 2022 10 31 4 45

At 1 July 2020
Charged to profit or loss 
Charged to other comprehensive income
Adjustment to income tax equivalent  
provided in previous years

51
–

(14)
–

28
4
–
–

5
–
–
–

84
4

(14)
–

At 30 June 2021 37 32 5 74

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

17 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities (continued)
 (c) Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets
  Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets during the reporting years  
  presented, are below:

PPE, and 
intangible 

assets
$M

Deferred tax  
equivalent 

liabilities
$M

At 1 July 2021
Charged to profit or loss 
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in previous years

1,122
81

(6)

1,122
81

(6)
At 30 June 2022 1,197 1,197

At 1 July 2020
Charged to profit or loss 
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in previous years

1,034
88
–

1,034
88
–

At 30 June 2021 1,122 1,122

 (d) Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities
  Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities during the reporting years presented,  
  are below:

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 4: Debt and equity
18 Financial risk management
 (a) Overview
  The Western Power Board has overall responsibility for financial risk management.  
  To assist in the performance of this responsibility, the Board has established an  
  Audit and Risk sub-Committee (ARC). 
  The ARC is supported in its oversight role by the Treasury Management Committee  
  (TMC) and the Internal Audit area. The TMC, comprising senior business experts,  
  considers all financial risk management policies and activities. The specialist  
  Internal Audit area undertakes regular and ad-hoc reviews of financial risk  
  management controls and procedures, the findings of which are reported to the ARC. 
  The Western Power Financial Management Policy sets the principles and framework  
  for governing financial risks arising from business operations. Adherence to this  
  policy ensures that at all times, Western Power maintains an appropriate level of  
  control over financial and associated risks that accords with strategic objectives  
  and legal responsibilities. 
  The principal financial risks arising from Western Power’s current operations as  
  described in this note are summarised below:

Risk Note Arises from: Measured by: Managed by:

Market risk
Interest rate 
risk

18(b)(i) • Borrowing  
obligations

• Sensitivity  
analysis

• Interest rate 
swaps

• Forward  
borrowing 
commitments

Foreign  
currency risk 

18(b)(ii) • Commercial 
transactions

• Sensitivity  
analysis

• Forward  
exchange  
contracts 

Credit risk 18(c) • Cash  
and cash  
equivalents

• Trade  
and other  
receivables 
(excluding  
prepayments)

• Derivative  
financial  
instruments

• Carrying  
and fair value 
amounts

• Ageing analysis

• Credit ratings 
• Counterparty 

limits
• Exposure  

monitoring
• Bank guarantees,  

insurance 
bonds or cash 
deposits

• Legal collection 
of debts

Liquidity risk 18(d) • Trade and  
other payables

• Borrowings
• Lease liabilities
• Derivative  

financial  
instruments

• Contractual  
maturities

• Available cash 
and borrowing 
facilities

• Debt maturity 
profiles

In this section
This section presents the liabilities relating to Western Power’s financing activities,  
as well as the key financial risks and equity of the business.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (b) Market risk
  Market risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a 
  financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Western  
  Power has exposures to movements in interest and foreign exchange rates.
  (i) Interest rate risk
    Interest rate risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows  
    of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest  
    rates. Interest rate risk in Western Power arises from borrowing obligations with  
    floating rates.
    Western Power has an interest rate risk management strategy which aims to  
    manage exposures to interest rate movements. Debt portfolio structure  
    guidelines are set to manage the interest rate risks arising from Western  
    Power’s commercial and regulatory environment. Interest rate exposure mix  
    guidelines are set to ensure that Western Power is not exposed to excess risk  
    from interest rate volatility.
    Interest rate forecasts are continuously monitored and, where appropriate,  
    exposures to interest rates are managed through the use of Board approved  
    hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and forward domestic  
    borrowing commitments. The critical terms of these hedging instruments must  
    align with the hedged items. 
    Effects of hedge accounting on financial position and performance 
    The effects of interest rate swaps on the financial position and performance  
    for the reporting dates presented, are below:

Note

Interest rate swaps

2021/22 2020/21
Carrying amount – asset/(liability) ($M)
Quantity (#) 
Notional amount ($M) 
Maturity dates 

Hedge ratio 
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging
instruments ($M) 
Change in value of hedged item used to 
determine hedge effectiveness ($M)

21(b)

21(b)(ii)

27
45

1,725
Jul-22 

to Jul-28

1:1
76

(76)

(50)
44

1,525
May-22 

to Jul-28

1 :1
35

(35)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (b) Market risk (continued)
  (ii) Foreign currency risk
    Foreign currency risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash  
    flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign  
    exchange rates. Foreign currency risk in Western Power arises from commercial  
    transactions denominated in foreign currency, principally for the purchase of  
    inventories and capital equipment from foreign suppliers.
    Western Power’s foreign currency risk management strategy aims to manage  
    significant exposures through the use of Board approved hedging instruments,  
    such as forward exchange contracts that provide certainty on costs. The critical  
    terms of these hedging instruments must align with the hedged items. 
    Western Power’s managed foreign currency risk as at the reporting dates  
    presented, is below.

2021/22 2020/21

Chinese 
Yuan Euro

United 
States 
Dollar

Chinese 
Yuan Euro

United 
States 
Dollar

Weighted average foreign 
exchange rate 
Forward exchange  
contracts maturing ($’000):

within one year
later than one year but  
not later than five years

– 

 

–
–

0.6516 

 

138
–

0.7430 

 

15,966
14,675

5.1271 

 

18,923
–

0.5813 

 

2,244
–

0.7627 

 

12,827
17,000

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the effect of forward exchange contracts  
on Western Power’s financial position and performance was not material  
(30 June 2021: not material). Refer to notes 21 and 24 for more details.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (b) Market risk (continued)
  (iii) Sensitivity analysis
    The table (below and right) summarises the potential impact to the annual  
    post-tax profit and other comprehensive income of Western Power as at the  
    reporting dates presented, due to movements in interest and foreign exchange  
    rates. The assumptions used are based on management’s best estimate of  
    a  reasonably possible movement given current market conditions. Carrying 

amount 
$M

Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk

Impact on  
post-tax  

profit  
+/- 1%

$M       $M

Impact  
on other  

comprehensive 
income
+/- 1%

$M       $M

Impact on  
post-tax  

profit
+/- 10%

$M       $M

Impact  
on other  

comprehensive 
income
+/- 10%

$M       $M

At 30 June 2021 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Trade and other  
receivables 
Derivatives-interest 
rate swaps2

Derivatives-FX  
contracts

50 

304

–

1

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

4

–

– 

–

(4)

–

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

–

(3)

– 

–

–

3

Total financial assets 355 – – 4 (4) – – (3) 3

Trade and other  
payables 
Borrowings1

Lease liabilities
Derivatives-interest 
rate swaps2

146 

7,720
20
50

– 

(11)
–
–

– 

11
–
–

– 

–
–

28

– 

–
–

(29)

– 

–
–
–

– 

–
–
–

– 

–
–
–

– 

–
–
–

Total financial  
liabilities

7,936 (11) 11 28 (29) – – – –

As at 30 June 2022, the sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s:
1 Floating rate borrowings of $2,765 million (30 June 2021: $2,598 million) and variable rate  
 working capital borrowings of $30 million (30 June 2021: $10 million). The majority of Western  
 Power’s borrowings are at fixed interest rates as allowable under the Board approved Treasury  
 Management Standard.
2 45 interest rate swap agreements (30 June 2021: 44) at a notional amount of $1,725 million  
 (30 June 2021: $1,525 million). These agreements are entered into to hedge against floating  
 interest rate exposures arising from borrowing obligations.

Carrying 
amount 

$M

Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk

Impact on  
post-tax  

profit  
+/- 1%

$M       $M

Impact  
on other  

comprehensive 
income
+/- 1%

$M       $M

Impact on  
post-tax  

profit
+/- 10%

$M       $M

Impact  
on other  

comprehensive 
income
+/- 10%

$M       $M

At 30 June 2022 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Trade and other  
receivables 
Derivatives-interest 
rate swaps2

Derivatives-FX  
contracts

30 

337

27

3

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

18

–

– 

–

(18)

–

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

–

–

– 

–

–

(3)

– 

–

–

4

Total financial assets 397 – – 18 (18) – – (3) 4

Trade and other  
payables 
Borrowings1

Lease liabilities
Derivatives-interest 
rate swaps2

156 

7,466
21
–

– 

(11)
–
–

– 

11
–
–

– 

–
–
1

– 

–
–

(1)

– 

–
–
–

– 

–
–
–

– 

–
–
–

– 

–
–
–

Total financial  
liabilities

7,643 (11) 11 1 (1) – – – –

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (b) Market risk (continued)
  (iii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (c) Credit risk
  Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Western Power if a customer or counterparty  
  to a financial instrument fails to discharge its contractual obligation. The maximum 
  exposure to credit risk for Western Power is best represented by the carrying  
  amounts of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position as at  
  the reporting dates (refer to note 8). 
  Western Power generally provides credit on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless  
  contractually agreed otherwise. Credit risk is actively managed through the  
  adherence of Western Power’s Credit Risk and Treasury Management Standards,  
  the use of credit ratings and monthly reporting to the Board. Western Power  
  manages the quality of financial assets and its concentrations of credit risk by  
  reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to historic information on  
  counterparty default rates. Bank guarantees, insurance bonds or cash deposits are  
  also obtained as security where necessary. 
  (i) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables
    Western Power applies the simplified approach to measure expected credit  
    losses on trade receivables. This approach recognises a lifetime expected loss  
    allowance for all trade receivables, being: 
    • a loss allowance from day one; and 
    • an estimate for forward-looking losses to reflect current conditions and  
     forecasts of future conditions. 
    To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables are grouped into  
    like customer categories based on shared credit risk characteristics.  
    The expected credit loss rate for each of these categories is based on the  
    customers’ payment profiles over a number of periods before the reporting  
    dates presented, and their corresponding historical credit losses experienced  
    within this period. 
    The historical credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and  
    forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability  
    of customers to settle the trade receivables. Western Power has identified  
    the Western Australian ‘gross state product’ to be the most relevant  
    macroeconomic factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical credit loss  
    rates based on the expected changes in this factor.
    For the year ended 30 June 2022, changes in this factor reflected estimates  
    for the ongoing impact of, and subsequent recovery from the COVID-19  
    pandemic on current and future economic conditions. This did not result in  
    a material change to Western Power’s allowance for impairment of trade  
    receivables (30 June 2021: no material change).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (c) Credit risk (continued)
  (i) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables  
    (continued)
    The loss allowance for the impairment of trade receivables for the reporting  
    years presented, is below. This allowance is recognised in ‘other expenses’ 
    in profit or loss (refer to note 5(c)(i)).

Current

30  
days 

late

60  
days  

late

90  
days  

late

More  
than 90 

days late Total

At 30 June 2022
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount  
– trade receivables ($M)

1.4%
72

–
7

–
1

–
2

30.0%
10 92

Impairment of trade  
receivables

1 – – – 3 4

At 30 June 2021
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount  
– trade receivables ($M)

1.1%
89

–
6

–
1

–
1

44.4%
9 106

Impairment of trade  
receivables

1 – – – 4 5

Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables during the  
reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
At 1 July
Allowed for in the reporting year
Previously allowed for and written off in the 
reporting year

5(c)(i)
5
1

(2)

3
3

(1)

At 30 June 4 5

There is no collateral security in place in respect of these amounts.

  (ii) Trade receivables past due but not impaired
    The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired as at the  
    reporting dates presented, is below:

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Due between 1 and 59 days
Due between 60 and 89 days
Due more than 90 days

8
2
7

7
1

5
17 13
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (d) Liquidity risk
  Liquidity risk is the risk Western Power will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations  
  associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. Western Power is governed by  
  the Treasury Management Standard which requires active management of cash  
  and ensures adequate facilities are in place to satisfy ongoing funding requirements.  
  This includes actively managing working capital for immediate needs, and the debt  
  portfolio within maturity guidelines to mitigate refinancing risk.
  (i) Working capital
    As at 30 June 2022, Western Power reported a working capital surplus of  
    $34 million (30 June 2021: $71 million). 
    This included current liabilities of $179 million for deferred income (30 June 2021:  
    $113 million) – relating to developer and customer contributions – which usually  
    do not require an outflow of cash resources, but rather are subsequently  
    recognised as revenue at the point the developers or customers are connected  
    to the network in satisfaction of the performance obligation of the underlying  
    connection contract (refer to note 16 for further details). 
    When these amounts are excluded, working capital shows current assets  
    exceeding current liabilities by $213 million (30 June 2021: $184 million).
  (ii) Financing arrangements
    Western Power has in place a borrowing facility with the WATC. Included 
    in this, is a working capital facility that can be drawn down to meet short-term  
    financing needs. The facility’s borrowing limit is set through the annual Western  
    Australian State Budget or as amended from time to time by a formal process,  
    including the mid-year State Budget review or via a letter of amendment. 
    The maximum amount of borrowings permitted by Western Power for the  
    reporting year ended 30 June 2022 was $7,445 million (30 June 2021:  
    $7,824 million). This is per the 2022/23 Western Australian State Budget handed 
     down in May 2022 (30 June 2021: per the 2020/21 Western Australian pre-election  
    State financial projections handed down in February 2021). 
    The unused portion of Western Power’s borrowing facility for the reporting  
    years presented, is below:

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Borrowing limit
Used portion of borrowing limit:

Domestic working capital facility 
Domestic currency loans

19(b)
19(b)

7,445

(30)
(7,389)

7,824

(10)
(7,661)

Total used portion of borrowing limit (7,419) (7,671)

Unused portion of borrowing limit 26 153

The maximum amount of borrowings permitted for Western Power for the  
reporting year ended 30 June 2023 is $7,871 million. This is per the 2022/23  
Western Australian State Budget handed down in May 2022.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (d) Liquidity risk (continued)
  (iii) Maturities of financial liabilities
    The table below and overleaf presents the maturity profile of Western Power’s  
    financial liabilities as at the reporting dates presented, based on contractual  
    undiscounted cash flows, including estimated interest payments and cash  
    flows associated with derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash  
    flow hedges.

Note

Within 
one year  

$M

Between 
one and 

five years  
$M

Later  
than five 

years  
$M

Total  
contractual 

cash flows  
(undiscounted)  

$M

Carrying 
amount 

$M

At 30 June 2022
Interest rate swaps:

Net settled
Forward exchange  
contracts:

(Inflow)
Outflow

21

21
(4)

(23)
21

(19)

(21)
20

(4)

–
–

(27)

(44)
41

(27)

(3)

Total derivative  
financial liabilities

(6) (20) (4) (30) (30)

Trade and other 
payables
Borrowings:

Domestic working  
capital facility
Domestic  
currency loans
Forward domestic  
borrowing  
commitments1

14

19
 

156

1,075
30 

1,039

6

–

4,184
– 

4,143

41

–

3,802
– 

3,542

260

156

9,061
30 

8,724

307

156

7,466
30 

7,436

–

Lease liabilities 20 8 11 2 21 21

Total  
non-derivatives  
financial liabilities

1,239 4,195 3,804 9,238 7,643
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18 Financial risk management (continued)
 (d) Liquidity risk (continued)
  (iii) Maturities of financial liabilities (continued)

Note

Within 
one year 

$M

Between 
one and 

five years  
$M

Later than 
five years  

$M

Total  
contractual 

cash flows  
(undiscounted)  

$M

Carrying 
amount 

$M

At 30 June 2021
Interest rate swaps:

Net settled
Forward exchange  
contracts:

(Inflow)
Outflow

21 

21

30

(24)
24

25

(23)
22

(1)

–
–

54

(47)
46

50

(1)

Total derivative  
financial liabilities

30 24 (1) 53 49

Trade and other 
payables
Borrowings:

Domestic working 
capital facility
Domestic  
currency loans
Forward domestic  
borrowing  
commitments1

14

19
 

146

1,044
10 

1,030

4

–

4,016
– 

3,873

143

–

4,358
– 

3,874

484

146

9,418
10 

8,777

631

146

7,720
10 

7,710

–

Lease liabilities 20 8 10 2 20 20

Total  
non-derivatives  
financial liabilities

1,198 4,026 4,360 9,584 7,886

      Borrowing facilities are in Australian dollars. Funds may be drawn down  
      subject to the borrowings facility and master lending agreement with the  
      WATC at varying maturities. As at 30 June 2022, the average maturity was  
      4.8 years (30 June 2021: 4.9 years).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
19 Borrowings
 (a) Accounting policy
    Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred  
    and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
    Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Western Power has an  
    agreement with the lender that allows refinancing of the liability for at least  
    12 months after the reporting date. This includes where a forward domestic  
    borrowing commitment exists that replaces the existing borrowing on the date  
    of maturity, and where this extends the maturity of the original borrowing to  
    greater than 12 months after the reporting date.
  Forward domestic borrowing commitments 
  Forward domestic borrowing commitments are entered into with the WATC to  
  borrow specified amounts in the future at pre-determined interest rates. 
  Fixed rate forward domestic borrowing commitments are recognised as derivative  
  financial instruments in the period between entering into the forward domestic  
  borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal. Once the loan is drawn  
  down, the principal is accounted for at fair value like any other borrowing. Any fair  
  value gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the forward is recognised in  
  the hedging reserve and re-classified to profit or loss over the term of the loan.
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Note

2021/22 2020/21

Current
$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M
Current

$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M

Domestic working  
capital facility 
Domestic currency 
loans
Accrued interest

 

19(c) 

30 

– 

–

– 

7,389 

47

30 

7,389 

47

10 

– 

–

– 

7,661 

49

10 

7,661 

49

30 7,436 7,466 10 7,710 7,720

  Western Power’s domestic borrowings are provided by the WATC, an entity owned  
  by the Western Australian State Government.
 (c) Classification of borrowings
  As at 30 June 2022, the non-current domestic currency loans of $7,389 million  
  (30 June 2021: $7,661 million) included an amount of $800 million that will become  
  due and payable during the 2022/23 reporting year (30 June 2021: $836 million that  
  became due and payable during the 2021/22 reporting year). It is Western Power’s  
  expectation and discretion that this amount will be refinanced under the master  
  lending agreement with the WATC rather than repaid, and therefore has been  
  classified as non-current. This is supported by: 
  • a master lending agreement with the WATC that allows Western Power to  
   refinance all or any part of maturing debt at regular intervals; and
  • the approval of Western Power’s forecast borrowing requirements for the next  
   four years, including no repayment of amounts classified as non-current above,  
   in the 2022/23 Western Australian State Budget handed down in May 2022.

1 There are no contractual cash flows for forward domestic borrowing commitments in the  
 period between entering into the forward domestic borrowing agreement and draw down of  
 the loan principal. The contractual cash flows after draw down of the agreed loan principal  
 are presented in the ‘borrowings’ section of this table.
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
20 Lease liabilities
 (a) Accounting policy
  Western Power leases fleet and other equipment (including properties and  
  information technology) required for the operation of the business. The lease 
  contracts are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of  
  different terms and conditions. Where the contracts contain both lease and  
  associated non-lease components, Western Power elects not to separate  
  and instead accounts for as single lease components. 
  At the commencement of a lease, the lease liability is measured at the present  
  value of outstanding payments. These payments include: 
  • fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease  
   incentives receivables;
  • variable lease payments based on an index or a rate, initially measured using  
   the index or rate as at the lease commencement date;
  • amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;
  • payments under extension options if it is reasonably certain the extension will  
   be exercised;
  • the exercise price of a purchase option if it is reasonably certain the option will  
   be exercised; and
  • payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects  
   exercising that option.
  Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where  
  this rate is not readily determined an incremental borrowing rate is used. Western  
  Power’s incremental borrowing rate is provided by the WATC, being the provider of  
  Western Power’s borrowings. 
  Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance  
  cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a  
  constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for  
  each period.
  Variable lease payments
  Variable lease payments can be exposed to potential future increases based on  
  an index or rate. Any increases are not included in the lease liability until they take  
  effect, at which point they are adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
  Extension and termination options
  Leases can include extension and termination options. This is to maximise  
  operational and asset management flexibility. Periods covered by these options  
  are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended  
  or not terminated.
  Short-term and low-value leases
  Refer to note 5(c)(ii) for details of Western Power’s ‘short term and low-value leases’  
  accounting policy.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
20 Lease liabilities (continued)
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2021/22 2020/21

Current
$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M
Current

$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M

Lease liabilities 8 13 21 8 12 20

(c)   Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M

Finance lease interest 6(b) – (1)

  For the year ended 30 June 2022, the total cash outflow for leases was $12 million  
  (30 June 2021: $11 million).
 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: present value of lease liabilities
  Western Power measures lease liabilities on a present value basis in accordance  
  with the accounting policy in note 20(a). This involves estimation and judgements  
  associated with identifying leases within contracts, lease versus non-lease  
  components including stand-alone prices, lease terms, variable versus fixed lease  
  payments, discount rates and degree of certainty around exercising extensions  
  and/or terminations options.
21 Derivative financial instruments
 (a) Accounting policy
  (i) Derivative financial instruments
    Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date  
    a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their  
    fair value as at each reporting date. The valuation techniques used to measure  
    fair value are further described in note 22(b). 
    Derivative financial instruments are presented as assets when the fair value is  
    positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
  (ii) Hedge accounting
    For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 
    • Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value  
     of a recognised asset or liability, or a firm commitment 
    • Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that  
     is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or  
     liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction
    At inception of the hedge relationship, Western Power documents the  
    economic relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items  
    including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments are  
    expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedged items. Western  
    Power documents the risk management objective and strategy for  
    undertaking the hedge transactions.
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

21 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  (ii) Hedge accounting (continued)

    Fair value hedges 

    For all derivative transactions designated as a fair value hedge, the portion of  
    gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in profit or loss, together  
    with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are  
    attributable to the hedged risk. There is no impact in other comprehensive 
    income or the hedging reserve. 

    During the year ended 30 June 2022, Western Power had not accounted for  
    any derivative financial instruments that qualified for hedge accounting as  
    fair value hedges (30 June 2021: nil).

    Cash flow hedges 

    For all derivative transactions designated as a cash flow hedge, the portion of  
    gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective  
    hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the  
    hedging reserve. The ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

    When the cash flows occur, the amounts deferred to equity are re-classified in  
    the same reporting year the hedged item affects the profit or loss, that is: 

    • Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a  
     non-financial asset (such as inventories or property, plant and equipment),  
     the amount deferred to equity for the effective portion of a forward exchange  
     contract is transferred to the carrying value of the asset. Where there is no  
     recognition of a non-financial asset, the effective portion is re-classified to  
     profit or loss in the same reporting year as the hedged item affects the profit  
     or loss.

    • The amount deferred to equity for the effective portion of an interest rate swap  
     or forward domestic borrowing commitment hedging a floating rate borrowing  
     is recognised in ‘finance costs’ in profit or loss, in the same reporting year as 
     the interest expense on the hedged loan.

    When a hedging instrument expires, is sold or is terminated, or when a hedge  
    no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or  
    loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity, and is recognised when  
    the forecast transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer  
    expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity  
    is immediately re-classified to profit or loss.

  (iii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

    For all derivative transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting,  
    any changes in fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

    During the year ended 30 June 2022, all Western Power’s derivative transactions  
    qualified for hedge accounting (30 June 2021: all qualified).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
21 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
 (a) Accounting policy (continued)
  (iv) Derecognition
    Derivative financial instruments are derecognised when Western Power no  
    longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the financial instrument.
    During the year ended 30 June 2022, Western Power did not derecognise any  
    derivative financial instruments (30 June 2021: nil derecognised).
 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Note

2021/22 2020/21

Current
$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M
Current

$M

Non- 
current

$M
Total

$M

Assets
Interest rate swaps
Forward exchange 
contracts

21(b)(i) 
4
2

23
1

27
3

–
–

–
1

–
1

6 24 30 – 1 1

Liabilities
Interest rate swaps

21(b)(i) 
– – – 14 36 50

– – – 14 36 50

  (i) Nature of derivatives
    Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge economic exposures to  
    movements in interest and foreign exchange rates. 
    Western Power uses derivative financial instruments in accordance with Board  
    approved policy. Under this policy the critical terms of the hedging instruments  
    must align with the hedged items. Speculative trading where a derivative is  
    entered into without an underlying economic exposure is strictly prohibited.  
    All derivative activities are carried out by a specialist group within Western  
    Power that has the appropriate skills, experience and supervision.
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

21 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position (continued)

  (i) Nature of derivatives (continued)

    As at the reporting dates presented, Western Power used the below derivative  
    financial instruments. All qualified for hedge accounting in accordance with the  
    accounting policy in note 21(a). This is further explained in note 21(b)(ii).

Instrument Economic exposure hedged

Interest rate swaps Western Power enters into interest rate swaps  
in order to hedge against floating interest rate  
exposures arising from borrowing obligations

Forward exchange  
contracts

Western Power enters into forward exchange  
contracts in order to hedge against foreign
currency risk, principally arising from the future 
purchase of inventories and capital equipment  
in foreign currencies

  (ii) Hedge ineffectiveness

    Hedge ineffectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship,  
    and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure an  
    economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument.  
    Hedge ineffectiveness can occur due to: 

    • changes in the forecast timing of the cash flow transaction; 

    • differences in the critical terms between the hedging instrument and the  
     hedged item; and

    • changes in the credit risk of Australia or the derivative counterparty.

    Interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments 

    Western Power enters into interest rate swaps and fixed rate forward domestic  
    borrowing commitments that have the same critical terms as the hedged  
    item, including the notional amount, interest rates, payment dates and  
    maturities. Where Western Power does not hedge all outstanding borrowings,  
    the hedged item is identified as a proportion of the outstanding borrowings up  
    to the notional amount of the hedging instrument.

    Forward exchange contracts 

    Western Power enters into forward exchange contracts that have the same  
    critical terms as the hedged item, including the transaction amount, foreign  
    exchange rates and payment dates. 

    During the year ended 30 June 2022, Western Power assessed no hedge  
    ineffectiveness – being all critical terms matched, ensuring the economic  
    relationships existed between the hedged items and hedging instruments  
    (30 June 2021: no hedge ineffectiveness).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

22 Recognised fair value measurements

 (a) Fair value hierarchy

  The assets and liabilities of Western Power that are measured and recognised  
  at fair value as at the reporting dates presented, are below, and disclosed by the  
  following fair value hierarchy levels:

  Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable  
      for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly  
      (i.e. derived from prices)

  Level 3: Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market  
      data (unobservable inputs)

2021/22 2020/21
Level 1 

$M
Level 2

$M
Level 3

$M
Total

$M
Level 1 

$M
Level 2

$M
Level 3

$M
Total

$M

Financial assets
Derivative financial 
instruments
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial 
instruments

–

–

30

–

–

–

30

–

–

–

1

50

–

–

1

50

  It is Western Power’s policy to recognise transfers into and out of the fair value  
  hierarchy levels at the end of each reporting year.

  As at 30 June 2022, there were no transfers between levels for recurring fair value  
  measurements (30 June 2021: no transfers).

 (b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: valuation techniques used to  
  derive level 2 fair values

  Recurring fair value measurements

  The fair value of derivatives in active markets is based on quoted market prices  
  at the end of the reporting year. Where derivatives are entered into that are not  
  traded in active markets the fair value is determined using valuation techniques.  
  These techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available  
  and rely as little as possible on specific estimates. In some instances, independent  
  valuations from the provider of the instrument are used. 

  If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are based on observable  
  market data, or the valuation is independently calculated by the provider of the  
  instrument, the instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant  
  inputs is not based on observable market data the instrument is included in level 3.
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22 Recognised fair value measurements (continued)
 (b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: valuation techniques used to  
  derive level 2 fair values (continued)
  Recurring fair value measurements (continued)
  During the year ended 30 June 2022, level 3 valuation techniques were not used  
  (30 June 2021: not used). 
  Specific valuation techniques used to value derivative financial instruments  
  (as relevant) include the following: 
  • The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated at the present value of the  
   estimated future cash flows based on a combination of observable BBSW  
   reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves
  • The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using a combination  
   of observable forward foreign exchange rates, BBSW reference rates and AUD  
   interest rate swap curves as at the reporting date
  • The fair value of fixed rate forward domestic borrowing commitments is  
   independently calculated by the WATC, the provider of these instruments
  All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2. For the potential  
  impact to Western Power’s annual post-tax profit and other comprehensive income  
  due to movements in the key observable inputs being interest and foreign  
  exchange rates, refer to the sensitivity analysis in note 18(b)(iii).
23 Contributed equity
 (a) Accounting policy
  Contributions made by the owner, as designated so at the time of, or prior to the  
  contribution, are recognised as a direct adjustment to equity when received.
 (b) Nature of contributions
  Contributed equity represents the initial and subsequent contributions made by  
  Western Power’s sole owner, the Western Australian State Government. No shares  
  have been allotted.
  The owner’s initial contribution comprised the assets of Western Power Corporation,  
  after deducting liabilities, transferred to Western Power on 1 April 2006. The owner  
  has made subsequent contributions including:
  • to the edge of grid and regional power investment programs;
  • to offset dividends paid (and retained) on capital contributions (including income  
   tax equivalent recoveries);
  • for the sale of land surplus to requirements; and
  • for the recovery of income tax equivalent expense on residential capital  
   contributions.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
23 Contributed equity (continued)
 (c) Movements in contributed equity
  Movements in contributed equity during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
At 1 July
Contributions received to offset: 

Final dividend 
Interim dividend

23(c)(i)
1,688

114
63

1,555

54
79

Total contributions received 177 133

At 30 June 1,865 1,688

  (i) Contributed equity
    During the reporting years presented, the State Government made  
    contributions to offset dividends retained by Western Power on capital  
    contributions (including income tax equivalent recoveries), for the sale of land  
    surplus to requirements and for the recovery of income tax equivalent expense  
    on residential capital contributions.
24 Hedging reserve and retained earnings
 (a) Accounting policy
  The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the cumulative net changes  
  in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated, and qualify  
  as cash flow hedges in accordance with the accounting policy in note 21(a). 
  Amounts are re-classified to profit or loss when the associated hedge transaction  
  affects profit or loss.
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
24 Hedging reserve and retained earnings (continued)
 (b) Movements in hedging reserve
  Movements in the hedging reserve during the reporting years presented, are below  
  and right:

Note

Interest 
rate 

swaps 
$M

Forward 
exchange 
contracts  

$M

Forward 
domestic 

borrowing 
commitments  

$M
Total  

$M

At 1 July 2021 (33) – (53) (86)

Other comprehensive income  
for the reporting year:

Fair value of cash flow hedges: 
Changes in the fair value of 
cash flow hedges
Re-classifications of cash flow  
hedges to profit or loss
Re-classifications of cash flow  
hedges not to profit or loss

6(b)

76

–

–

4

–

(1)

–

11

–

80

11

(1)

Total fair value of cash flow 
hedges 

Tax equivalent on fair value  
of cash flow hedges:
Tax equivalent on changes  
in the fair value of cash flow 
hedges 
Tax equivalent on  
re-classifications of cash flow 
hedges to profit or loss 
Tax equivalent on  
re-classifications of cash flow 
hedges not to profit or loss

 

7(d) 

 

 

76

 

 
(23) 

 
– 

 
–

3

 

 
(1) 

 
– 

 
–

11

 

 
– 

 
(3) 

 
–

90

 

 
(24) 

 
(3) 

 
–

Total tax equivalent on fair  
value of cash flow hedges

(23) (1) (3) (27)

Total other comprehensive  
income for the reporting year

53 2 8 63

At 30 June 2022 20 2 (45) (23)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)
24 Hedging reserve and retained earnings (continued)
 (b) Movements in hedging reserve (continued)

Note

Interest 
rate 

swaps 
$M

Forward 
exchange 
contracts  

$M

Forward 
domestic 

borrowing 
commitments  

$M
Total  

$M

At 1 July 2020 (57) (1) (61) (119)

Other comprehensive income  
for the reporting year:

Fair value of cash flow hedges: 
Changes in the fair value of  
cash flow hedges
Re-classifications of cash flow  
hedges to profit or loss
Re-classifications of cash flow  
hedges not to profit or loss

6(b)

35

–

–

–

–

1

–

11

–

35

11

1

Total fair value of cash flow  
hedges 

Tax equivalent on fair value  
of cash flow hedges:
Tax equivalent on changes  
in the fair value of cash flow  
hedges 
Tax equivalent on  
re-classifications of cash flow  
hedges to profit or loss 
Tax equivalent on  
re-classifications of cash flow  
hedges not to profit or loss

 
7(d) 

 

 

35

 

 
(11) 

 
– 

 
–

1

 

 
– 

 
– 

 
–

11

 

 
– 

 
(3) 

 
–

47

 

 
(11) 

 
(3) 

 
–

Total tax equivalent on fair  
value of cash flow hedges

(11) – (3) (14)

Total other comprehensive  
income for the reporting year

24 1 8 33

At 30 June 2021 (33) – (53) (86)
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Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

24 Hedging reserve and retained earnings (continued)

 (c) Movements in retained earnings

  Movements in retained earnings during the reporting years presented, are below:

25 Dividends

 (a) Accounting policy

  Dividends are provided for in the reporting year in which the dividends recommended  
  by the Board are accepted by the Minister for Energy – with the concurrence of the  
  Treasurer of Western Australia. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

  Dividends are subject to a solvency test in-line with the Act.

 (b) Dividends recognised in the reporting years

  During the reporting years presented, the below dividends were declared and paid  
  to the Western Australian State Government:

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M

At 1 July 1,345 1,254

Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent
Dividends provided for or paid 25(b)

400
–

391
(300)

At 30 June 1,745 1,345

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Final dividend
Special dividend
Interim dividend

25(b)(i)
25(b)(ii)
25(b)(i)

–
–
–

(77)
(7)

(216)

– (300)

  (i) Final and interim dividends
    During the year ended 30 June 2022, Western Power did not pay the State  
    Government a final and/or interim dividend (30 June 2021: $293 million).  
    This is in-line with written notice from the Minister for Energy, and pursuant to  
    sections 126 and 127A of the Act respectively – being the directors recommended:
    • a nil dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 – typically payable six months  
     in arrears (by December 2021); and
    • a nil interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2022 – typically payable  
     no later than the financial year to which it relates (by June 2022).
  (ii) Special dividend
    In-line with note 25(b)(i), Western Power did not pay the State Government a  
    special dividend during the year ended 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021: $7 million  
    for the sale of land surplus to requirements).

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

25 Dividends (continued)

 (c) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year

  Since the end of the 30 June 2022 reporting year the directors have resolved  
  to recommend, subject to the approval of the Minister for Energy, a dividend of  
  $79 million for the year ended 30 June 2022, being:

  • a final dividend of $75 million in-line with Western Power’s net profit after income  
   tax equivalent; plus

  • a special dividend of $4 million for the sale of land surplus to requirements. 

  This recommendation is reflective of a nil interim dividend for the year ended  
  30 June 2022 in-line with written notice from the Minister for Energy. 

  The $79 million will be provided for in the accounts once accepted by the Minister  
  for Energy – with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia. It is to be  
  offset by an equity contribution subject to approval by the Western Australian  
  State Government.
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Section 5: Other information

26 Related party transactions
 (a) Owner
  Although Western Power operates as a corporatised enterprise under the Act, it is  
  accountable to and controlled by the Western Australian State Government, via the  
  Minister for Energy, as Western Power’s sole owner and shareholder.
  Related parties of Western Power include: 
  • All Cabinet Ministers of the Western Australian State Government (Cabinet Ministers)  
   and their close family members, and entities controlled or jointly controlled by them
  • All Western Power directors and executive officers (unless employed for a limited  
   period during the reporting year – generally three months or less) and their close  
   family members, and entities controlled or jointly controlled by them
  • Other Western Australian statutory authorities and departments, including their  
   related bodies, that are included in the State’s whole of government consolidated  
   financial statements 
  • Associates and joint ventures of any entities that are included in the State’s whole  
   of government consolidated financial statements
  • The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB)
 (b) Key management personnel compensation
  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility  
  for planning, directing and controlling the activities of an entity, either directly  
  or indirectly. 
  Western Power’s key management personnel has been determined to be the State’s  
  Cabinet Ministers, and the directors and executive officers of Western Power. 
  Total compensation to Western Power’s key management personnel (excluding State  
  Cabinet Ministers), for the reporting years presented, is below:

In this section
This section presents other information that must be disclosed in compliance with  
Australian accounting standards and other AASB pronouncements, but that are not  
immediately related to individual line items in the financial statements.

2021/22 
$’000

2020/21 
$’000

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment superannuation benefits
Long-term benefits 
Termination benefits

3,279
283

58
481

3,458
222
70 

662

4,101 4,412

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 5: Other information (continued)

26 Related party transactions (continued)
 (b) Key management personnel compensation (continued)
  Total compensation to the State’s Cabinet Ministers is not disclosed because there  
  is no obligation for Western Power to reimburse this amount. Details however, can be  
  found in the ‘2021/22 annual report on state finances’ published on the Western  
  Australian Department of Treasury’s website.
 (c) Transactions with related parties
  (i) Key management personnel
    Western Power’s key management personnel and their related parties, conduct  
    transactions with Western Power within normal employee and customer  
    relationships. The terms and conditions are no different to those it is reasonable  
    to expect Western Power would adopt if dealing with the Cabinet Minister,  
    director, executive officer and/or their related party in an arm’s length  
    transaction in similar circumstances.
    Western Power is not aware of material related party transactions with the  
    State’s Cabinet Ministers, the directors and executive officers of Western Power  
    and/or their close family members or entities controlled or jointly controlled  
    by them.

For more detailed Western Power remuneration disclosures refer to the ‘remuneration’  
section of the directors’ report within this financial report.



Western Power Annual Report 2022 | 147146 | Western Power Annual Report 2022

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 5: Other information (continued)

26 Related party transactions (continued)
 (c) Transactions with related parties (continued)
  (ii) Government-related entities
    During the reporting years presented, Western Power engaged in the below  
    transactions, being significant in terms of size (total annual transaction was  
    generally in excess of $20 million), with other public sector entities controlled  
    by the Western Australian State Government:

Note
2021/22 

$M
2020/21 

$M
Receipts
Synergy:

Transmission and distribution network 
tariff revenue

Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
Proceeds from borrowings

Department of Treasury: 
Proceeds from contributed equity 

Public Transport Authority: 
Capital contributions 

Payments
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:

Repayments of borrowings 
Net finance costs paid 

Department of Treasury: 
Contributions to tariff equalisation fund
Income tax equivalents paid 
Distributions to equity holder 

Department of Finance: 
Payroll tax

Outstanding receivables (current) 
Synergy: 

Network tariff receivables 
Department of Finance: 

Current tax equivalent assets 
Outstanding payables  
(current and non-current) 
Department of Finance: 

Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:

Borrowings (including accrued interest)
Future commitments 
Department of Treasury: 

Tariff equalisation contribution

9(e)

23(c)

9(e)

29(b)

25(b)

17(b)

29(b)

1,251

575

177

8

(816)
(197)

(187)
(93)

–

(25)

252

7

(1,152)

(7,464)

(710)

1,176

984

133

38

(809)
(207)

(185)
(109)
(300)

(25)

211

3

(1,048)

(7,715)

(756)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Section 5: Other information (continued)

27 Remuneration of auditors
 (a) Audit services
  Under the Act, the Auditor General for Western Australia has been appointed  
  Western Power’s independent auditor. The indicative audit fee for the services  
  provided by the Office of the Auditor General for the reporting years presented,  
  are below:

2021/22 
$’000

2020/21 
$’000

Annual audit of financial statements and other  
assurance services

470 458

 (b) Non-audit services
  Neither the Office of the Auditor General nor their agent(s) provided any non-audit  
  services during the year ended 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021: nil). 
  Non-audit services represent engagements in addition to the statutory and  
  regulatory audit duties of the external auditor.

28 Contingencies
 Western Power’s policy is to disclose details of contingencies where the probability  
 of future receipts and/or payments is not considered remote, as well as details of  
 contingencies, which although considered remote, the directors consider should  
 be disclosed.
 (a) Contingent assets
  Western Power did not have any contingent assets as at 30 June 2022 (30 June 2021: nil).
 (b) Contingent liabilities
  (i) Contaminated sites
    As at 30 June 2022, Western Power has reported 133 known or suspected  
    contaminated sites to the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation  
    (DWER) under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (WA) (30 June 2021: 150). 
    Until Western Power conducts an investigation to determine the presence and  
    scope of contamination, assesses the risk and agrees with the DWER the need  
    and criteria for remediation, Western Power is unable to accurately quantify  
    its clean-up liabilities for all known or suspected contaminated sites. 
    Western Power continues to monitor the sites and progressively undertakes  
    risk-based site investigations and remediation. This approach is consistent 
    with the DWER guidelines.
  (ii) Other
    Western Power is currently party to, or is potentially affected by a number  
    of legal claims. Until proceedings relating to these claims are finalised,  
    uncertainty exists regarding the impact, if any, on the operations of  
    Western Power. 
    In the opinion of the directors, provisions or further disclosures are not required  
    in respect of these contingencies, as it is not probable a future sacrifice of  
    economic benefits will be required, or the amount is not capable of  
    reliable measurement.
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Section 5: Other information (continued)

29 Commitments

 (a) Capital commitments

  Future capital commitments contracted for as at the reporting dates presented,  
  but for which no amounts have been provided for in the financial statements are  
  below. They include major transmission and distribution capital expenditure largely  
  associated with asset replacements, customer-funded work and undergrounding,  
  plus property and information technology initiatives.

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Payable within one year 
Payable later than one year but not later than five years

207
30

170
45

237 215

 (b) Other expenditure commitments

  As at the reporting dates presented, the State Government requires Western Power  
  to make, by notice published in the gazette, the below future annual payments  
  into the tariff equalisation fund for the benefit of the Regional Power Corporation.  
  The 2021/22 reported commitments were gazetted on 10 June 2022.

2021/22 
$M

2020/21 
$M

Payable within one year 
Payable later than one year but not later than five years

175
535

187
569

710 756

  For the year ended 30 June 2022, Western Power made payments of $187 million  
  into the tariff equalisation fund (30 June 2021: $185 million). This expense has been  
  recognised in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss (refer to note 5(c)(i)).

30 Events occurring after the reporting date

 There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since 30 June 2022 and the  
 date of this report that are likely, in the opinion of the directors, to significantly affect the  
 operations of Western Power, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of  
 Western Power in subsequent reporting years.

Directors’ declaration

In the directors’ opinion:

(a) The financial statements and notes comply with Australian accounting standards,  
 other authoritative pronouncements and Schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations  
 Act 2005 (WA)

(b) The financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial position  
 of Western Power as at 30 June 2022 and of its performance for the reporting year  
 ended on that date

(c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that Western Power will be able to pay its  
 debts as and when they become due and payable

The directors’ have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief  
Financial Officer for the reporting year ended 30 June 2022. This is pursuant to section  
295(4)(e) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) despite not mandatory for Western Power.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 29 August 2022.

29 August 2022

C Beckett AO
Board Chair

G Martin
Deputy Board Chair
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363 Wellington Street
Perth WA 6000
GPO Box L921 Perth WA 6842

General enquiries 13 10 87
TTY (for those who are speech  
or hearing impaired) 1800 13 13 51
TIS (interpreter services) 13 14 50

westernpower.com.au

Electricity Networks Corporation
trading as Western Power
ABN 18 540 492 861
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